
-1-

CITY OF ONTARIO 
PLANNING COMMISSION/ 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION 
SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 

December 16, 2019 

Ontario City Hall 
303 East "B" Street, Ontario, California 91764 

6:30 PM 

WELCOME to a special meeting of the Ontario Planning/Historic 
Preservation Commission. 
All documents for public review are on file in the Planning Department located at 303 E. B 
Street, Ontario, CA  91764. 
• Anyone wishing to speak during public comment or on a particular item should fill out a green

slip and submit it to the Secretary.

• Comments will be limited to 5 minutes.  Speakers will be alerted when their time is up.
Speakers are then to return to their seats and no further comments will be permitted.

• In accordance with State Law, remarks during public comment are to be limited to subjects
within the Commission’s jurisdiction.  Remarks on other agenda items will be limited to those
items.

• Remarks from those seated or standing in the back of the chambers will not be permitted.  All
those wishing to speak including Commissioners and Staff need to be recognized by the Chair
before speaking.

• The City of Ontario will gladly accommodate disabled persons wishing to communicate at a
public meeting. Should you need any type of special equipment or assistance in order to
communicate at a public meeting, please inform the Planning Department at (909) 395-2036, a
minimum of 72 hours prior to the scheduled meeting.

• Please turn off all communication devices (phones and beepers) or put them on non-audible
mode (vibrate) so as not to cause a disruption in the Commission proceedings.

ROLL CALL 

DeDiemar         Downs   Gage __     Gregorek __     Reyes __     Ricci __   Willoughby __ 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG 



CITY OF ONTARIO PLANNING/HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION   Dec. 16, 2019 
 
 

-2- 

SPECIAL CEREMONIES 
 

1) Presentation of Design Award for Ontario Mills Southwest Entrance 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

1) Agenda Items 
 
2) Commissioner Items 

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Citizens wishing to address the Planning/Historic Preservation Commission on any matter that is not 
on the agenda may do so at this time. Please state your name and address clearly for the record and 
limit your remarks to five minutes. 
 
Please note that while the Planning/Historic Preservation Commission values your comments, the 
Commission cannot respond nor take action until such time as the matter may appear on the 
forthcoming agenda. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 
 
All matters listed under CONSENT CALENDAR will be enacted by one summary motion in the order 
listed below. There will be no separate discussion on these items prior to the time the Commission votes 
on them, unless a member of the Commission or public requests a specific item be removed from the 
Consent Calendar for a separate vote. In that case, the balance of the items on the Consent Calendar 
will be voted on in summary motion and then those items removed for separate vote will be heard. 
 
A-01. MINUTES APPROVAL 
 

Planning/Historic Preservation Commission Minutes of November 26, 2019, approved as 
written.   

 
A-02. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW 

FOR FILE NO. PDEV19-021: A Development Plan to construct a 21,952-square foot 
industrial building on 0.92-acre of land located at 1613 S. Baker Avenue, within the IG 
(General Industrial) zoning district. The project is categorically exempt from the 
requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 
15332 (Class 32, In-Fill Development Projects) of the CEQA Guidelines. The proposed 
project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport and 
was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario 
International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APN: 0113-414-14) 
submitted by Robert Riggio.  

  
A-03. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW 

FOR FILE NO. PDEV19-033: A Development Plan to construct a 79,220 square-foot 
industrial building on 3.38 acres of land, located at 540 East Maitland Street, within the 
IL (Light Industrial) zoning district. Staff has determined that the project is categorically 
exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, In-Fill Development Projects) of the CEQA 



CITY OF ONTARIO PLANNING/HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION   Dec. 16, 2019 
 
 

-3- 

guidelines. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario 
International Airport (ONT) and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the 
policies and criteria of the ONT Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APNs: 
1049-501-12, 1049-501-13 and 1049-501-14) submitted by Lake Creek Industrial, 
LLC.  

 
PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS 
 
For each of the items listed under PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS, the public will be provided an 
opportunity to speak. After a staff report is provided, the chairperson will open the public hearing. At 
that time the applicant will be allowed five (5) minutes to make a presentation on the case. Members of 
the public will then be allowed five (5) minutes each to speak. The Planning/Historic Preservation  
Commission may ask the speakers questions relative to the case and the testimony provided. The 
question period will not count against your time limit. After all persons have spoken, the applicant will 
be allowed three minutes to summarize or rebut any public testimony. The chairperson will then close 
the public hearing portion of the hearing and deliberate the matter. 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION ITEMS 
 
B. REQUEST TO RESCIND TENTATIVE TRACT MAP FILE NO. PMTT16-004 

(TTM 19966): Consideration of a request to rescind the  approval of File No. PMTT16-
004 (TT 19966), a Tentative Tract Map subdividing 111.10 acres of land into 480 
numbered lots and 92 lettered lots generally located at the southwest corner of Riverside 
Drive and Ontario Avenue, within the Residential Single Family district of Planning 
Areas 2, 3, 4, and 5 of the Armstrong Ranch Specific Plan. Staff has determined that the 
project does not require any environmental action under California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA); (APNs: 0218-101-01, 0218-101-02, 0218-101-07, 0218-101-08, 
0218-102-10, and 0218-102-11) submitted by CVRC Ontario Investments, LLC. 

 
1. CEQA Determination  

 
No action necessary  

 
2. File No. PMTT16-004 (TTM 19966)  (Rescind Tentative Tract Map) 

 
Motion to Approve/Deny  

 
C. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

AMENDMENT REVIEW FOR FILE NO. PDA15-003: A First Amendment to the 
Development Agreement (File No. PDA15-003) between the City of Ontario and 
BrookCal Ontario, LLC, modifying requirements for the commencement and completion 
of the Deferred Frontage Improvements associated with Tract Map 18937 (File No. 
PMTT17-002) located at the northeast corner of Archibald Avenue and Ontario Ranch 
Road, within Planning Area 7 of The Avenue Specific Plan.  The environmental impacts 
of this project were previously analyzed in an amendment to The Avenue Specific Plan 
(File No. PSPA13-003), for which an addendum to the EIR (SCH# 2005071109) was 
adopted by the City Council on June 17, 2014.  All adopted mitigation measures of the 
addendum shall be a condition of approval for the project and are incorporated herein by 
reference. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario 



CITY OF ONTARIO PLANNING/HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION   Dec. 16, 2019 
 
 

-4- 

International Airport (ONT) and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the 
policies and criteria of the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plans (ALUCP) for ONT 
Airport.  (APNs: 0218-972-01, -02 through -81; 0218-973-01, -02 through -16; 0218-
974-01, -02 through -93; and 0218-975-01, -02 through -52) submitted by BrookCal 
Ontario, LLC. City Council action is required. 

 
1. CEQA Determination  

 
No action necessary – use of previous addendum to an EIR 
    

2. File No. PDA15-003  (Development Agreement Amendment)  
 

Motion to recommend Approval/Denial 
 
MATTERS FROM THE PLANNING/HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 
 
1) Old Business 

• Reports From Subcommittees 
 

- Historic Preservation (Standing): Did not meet this month 
 

2) New Business 
 
3) Nominations for Special Recognition 
 
DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 

1) Monthly Activity Report 
 
If you wish to appeal any decision of the Planning/Historic Preservation Commission, you must do so 
within ten (10) days of the Commission action. Please contact the Planning Department for 
information regarding the appeal process. 
 
If you challenge any action of the Planning/Historic Preservation Commission in court, you may be 
limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing described in this 
notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the Planning/Historic Preservation Commission at, or 
prior to, the public hearing. 

 
 

♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





-1-

CITY OF ONTARIO PLANNING COMMISSION/ 
HISTORIC PRESERVATION MEETING 

MINUTES 

November 26, 2019 

CONTENTS PAGE 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE ................................................................................................   2 

ANNOUNCEMENTS............................................................................................................   2 

PUBLIC COMMENTS ..........................................................................................................   2 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

A-01. Minutes of October 22, 2019 .....................................................................................   2 

A-02. PDEV19-039  ............................................................................................................   2 

A-03. PDEV19-015 ............................................................................................................   3 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

B. File No. PHP19-014 ...................................................................................................  3 

C. File No. PHP19-009 ...................................................................................................  6 

D. File Nos. PUD19-001 & PDEV19-038  .....................................................................  6 

E. File No. PMTT19-007 (PM 19970)  ..........................................................................  8 

F. File No. PSPA19-002 ................................................................................................  10 

G. File No. PDEV19-025  ...............................................................................................  10 

MATTERS FROM THE PLANNING COMMISSION ........................................................  13 

DIRECTOR’S REPORT ........................................................................................................  14 

ADJOURNMENT   ..........................................................................................................  14 

Item A-01 - 1 of 14



 
 

-2- 

CITY OF ONTARIO PLANNING COMMISSION/ 
HISTORIC PRESERVATION MEETING 

 
MINUTES 

 
November 26, 2019 

 
REGULAR MEETING: City Hall, 303 East B Street 
    Called to order by Chairman Willoughby at 6:30 PM 
 
COMMISSIONERS 
Present: Chairman Willoughby, Vice-Chairman DeDiemar, Gage, 

Gregorek, Reyes and Ricci 
 
Absent: Downs 
 
OTHERS PRESENT: Planning Director Wahlstrom, Assistant Planning Director 

Zeledon, City Attorney Graham, Senior Planner D. Ayala, Senior 
Planner Mejia, Associate Planner Aguilo, Associate Planner Chen, 
Associate Planner Vaughn, Principal Engineer Lirley, and 
Planning Secretary Berendsen 

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Commissioner Reyes. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
Ms. Wahlstrom stated there was a change to the Agenda regarding Item F which is a motion to 
recommend the use of an addendum and a redlined version of the updated resolution was before 
them.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
No one responded from the audience.  
 
CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 
 
A-01. MINUTES APPROVAL 
 
Planning/Historic Preservation Commission Minutes of October 22, 2019, approved as written. 

 
A-02. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW 

FOR FILE NO. PDEV19-039: A Development Plan to construct 67 conventional 
single-family homes on 11.24 acres of land located at the southeast corner of Eucalyptus 
Avenue and Parkplace Avenue, within the Conventional Medium Lot Residential district 
of Planning Area 20 of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan. The environmental impacts of this 

Item A-01 - 2 of 14



 
 

-3- 

project were previously reviewed in conjunction with the Subarea 29 Specific Plan, for 
which an Environmental Impact Report (SCH# 2004011009) was certified by the City 
Council on October 17, 2006. This application introduces no new significant 
environmental impacts, and all previously-adopted mitigation measures are a condition of 
project approval. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of 
Ontario International Airport and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the 
policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
(ALUCP); (APN: 0218-014-25) submitted by Taylor Morrison of California, LLC. 

 
A-03. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW 

FOR FILE NO. PDEV19-015: A Development Plan to construct one industrial building 
totaling 28,003 square feet on 1.21 acres of land located at 1413 West Holt Boulevard, 
within the IP (Industrial Park) zoning district. The project is categorically exempt from 
the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to 
Section 15332 (Class 32, In-fill Development Projects) of the CEQA Guidelines. The 
proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International 
Airport and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the 
Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APN: 1011-111-
04) submitted by United Trust Realty Corporation.  

 
PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION 

 
It was moved by Gregorek, seconded by Reyes, to approve the Consent Calendar 
including the Minutes of October 22, 2019, as written, and the Development 
Plans, File Nos., PDEV19-039 and PDEV19-015, subject to conditions of 
approval. The motion was carried 6 to 0. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS 
 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION ITEMS 
 
B. CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS REVIEW FOR FILE NO. PHP19-014: 

A Certificate of Appropriateness for the adaptive reuse of two local historic landmark 
commercial buildings (Bank of Italy and Bumstead Bicycles) for a total of 8,460 square 
foot specialty restaurant(s) and bar, with a 4,200 square foot outdoor patio on 0.23 acres 
of land located at the northeast corner of B Street and Euclid Avenue, within the 
Downtown Civic Center Planned Unit Development zoning district. The project is 
categorically exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) pursuant to Section 15331 (Historical Resource Restoration/Rehabilitation) of 
the CEQA Guidelines. (APN: 1048-552-22) submitted by 200 N. Euclid Avenue, LLC. 

 
 Senior Planner D. Ayala presented the staff report. She described the location and the 

surrounding area and the historical value to the community. She described the historical 
architecture and the damaged material that will be restored as part of the project. She explained 
the proposed businesses and use of the areas and the remodeling that would occur. She stated 
that staff is recommending the Planning Commission approve File No. PHP19-014, pursuant to 
the facts and reasons contained in the staff report and attached resolution, and subject to the 
conditions of approval.  

 

Item A-01 - 3 of 14



 
 

-4- 

No one responded. 
 
PUBLIC TESTIMONY 
 

Mr. Marco Brambilla, architect on the project stated he was glad to be at this point. Mr. Alex 
Baroian, the owner, appeared and spoke. 

 
Mr. Gage asked Mr. Baroian if he agreed to the Conditions of Approval.  
 
Mr. Brambilla stated yes. 
 
Mr. Gage wanted clarification if the iconic clock was being replaced.  
 
Mr. Baroian stated it is in the works to sourcing a replica and hoping to get it done. 
 
Mr. Gage wanted clarification that this project would include three different restaurants. 
 
Mr. Baroian stated yes the three restaurants they are envisioning would be a southern barbecue 
with an outside barbecue pit and eating area, a coffee shop, not a chain but more of a mom and 
pop, with maybe a pizza oven, where you could walk up from the park area to, and the roof top 
restaurant, maybe being a higher end steak house, but nothing is concrete on this yet. 

 
Mr. Gage wanted to know if the applicant has experience in renovating historic buildings like 
this. 
 
Mr. Baroian stated yes, they have decades of experience with historic buildings, and their most 
recent project in Glendale, the Huntley Evans building, for adaptive reuse after the Northridge 
earthquake for hospitality, banquet facilities, and offices. He stated they love working with old 
buildings and the architectural styles that they can revive and reuse. 
 
Mr. Brambilla stated this team operates and has done similar projects and is sensitive to the 
preservation of the architectural texture. He has a PHD in Historic preservation and has toured all 
over the world and has done even older renovation projects in Europe and on the east coast. He 
stated that as a whole team they bring a lot of experience to the table. 
 
Mr. Baroian stated that they are unique, because they are not only the real estate developers, but 
they help with operating the businesses, which allows them to custom build the buildings to 
bring them back to life and then operate them and work with the city to make sure they are 
harmonious to what is around them. 
 
Mr. Gage wanted to know if the vault in the bank would be reused.  
 
Mr. Baroian stated there are two vaults, one in the basement, which is able to be reused, but the 
one on the first floor became a structural issue.  
 
Mr. Reyes wanted to clarify that the applicant would be working with staff regarding the finishes 
and the final design and materials to make sure they are historically compatible, especially the 
canopy. 
 

Item A-01 - 4 of 14



 
 

-5- 

Mr. Baroian stated he is excited to work with the city to make sure what they do will be 
harmonious and will last another 100 years, and everyone will take pride in. 
 
Mr. Brambilla stated the finishes would be the least intrusive materials as possible and the being 
that the area was developed recently with an architectural component, they want to make sure it 
is compatible, and they aren’t introducing a different style, but work with the finishes 
incorporated already. 
 
Ms. DeDiemar wanted to know if this is their first project in Ontario and why did they pick this 
building in Ontario. 
 
Mr. Baroian stated yes, it is there first project in Ontario and the building caught their attention. 
He stated they had worked with Mr. Ochoa in Glendale and he had recommended they take a 
look at the building. 
 
Ms. DeDiemar wanted clarity that they would be operating all three of the businesses when they 
were completed. 
 
Mr. Baroian stated yes that is the plan, unless someone comes in to lease it out that would do as 
good a job or better than them. 
 
Mr. Ricci wanted clarity regarding the rooftop dining area, and do they have any contingencies 
regarding weather issues.  
 
Mr. Brambilla stated that the existing parapet is high enough that when you are sitting on the 
rooftop you would already be protected from the elements, however there would be misters and 
outdoor air conditioning systems and gas heaters to help with the weather conditions. He stated 
that the brick portion of the parapet is quite high and will protect the patrons from the elements, 
but if need be, they would install glass panels, so as not to affect the look of the building. 
  
Mr. Gregorek wanted clarification regarding the cigar lounge. 
 
Mr. Baroian stated it is still on the plans. 
 
Mr. Gregorek wanted clarity if that business would have the same owner as the steak house.  
 
Mr. Baroian stated it would depend on the regulations surrounding the cigar lounge and will 
address the issues if it needs to be a separate entity. 
 
Mr. Willoughby stated he was excited about this project and the Bank of Italy being used.  

 
As there was no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Willoughby closed the public 
testimony 
 

Mr. Gage stated he is very excited, and it looks like they have the right team to make this work. 
He explained the background for the Bank of Italy building and its historic significance to 
Ontario. He stated he is excited about the barbecue and would definitely be voting for this. 

 
Mr. Reyes stated he is excited and knows a project like this is all about the details which takes a 

Item A-01 - 5 of 14



 
 

-6- 

lot to do a project like this. He stated this project has all the right components: the right team that 
incorporates the developer, builder and operator and has experience in historic renovation, the 
right timing with 2020 coming and the energy that brings, and the right relationship between the 
builders and the city staff, to make this a successful project.  
 
Mr. Gregorek stated this is a win, win project with restoring the historic structure and getting sit 
down restaurants, which are needed in the city.  

 
PLANNING/HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION ACTION 
 
It was moved by Gregorek, seconded by Gage, to adopt a resolution to approve 
the Certificate of Appropriateness, File No., PHP19-014, subject to conditions 
of approval. Roll call vote: AYES, DeDiemar, Gage, Gregorek, Reyes, Ricci, 
and Willoughby; NOES, none; RECUSE, none; ABSENT, Downs. The motion 
was carried 6 to 0. 
 

C. CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS REVIEW FOR FILE NO. PHP19-009: 
A Certificate of Appropriateness to construct a 2,430 square foot drive-thru restaurant 
(Starbucks Coffee), with a 480 square foot outdoor patio on 0.36 acres of land, located at 
the northwest corner of Euclid Avenue and E Street (110 West E. Street and 511 N. 
Euclid Avenue) within the MU-1 (Downtown Mixed-Use) and EA (Euclid Avenue 
Overlay) zoning districts. The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of 
the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15331 (Historical 
Resource Restoration/Rehabilitation) of the CEQA Guidelines. (APN: 1048-355-09 and 
10) submitted by Hannibal Petrossi. 

 
PLANNING COMMISSION ITEMS 
 
D. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT, PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT, AND 

DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE NOS. PUD19-001 AND PDEV19-
038: A Planned Unit Development (File No. PUD19-001) to establish development 
standards, design guidelines and infrastructure requirement for property on 0.36 acres of 
land, located at the northwest corner of Euclid Avenue and E Street (110 West E. Street 
and 511 N. Euclid Avenue) within the MU-1 (Downtown Mixed-Use) and EA (Euclid 
Avenue Overlay) zoning districts,  in conjunction with a Development Plan (File No. 
PDEV19-038) to construct a 2,430 square foot drive-thru restaurant (Starbucks Coffee), 
with a 480 square foot outdoor patio. The project is categorically exempt from the 
requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 
15332 (Class 32, In-fill Development Projects) of the CEQA Guidelines. The proposed 
project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport and 
was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario 
International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APN: 1048-355-09 and 
10) submitted by Hannibal Petrossi. City Council action is required for File No. 
PUD19-001. 
 

Assistant Planning Director Zeledon, presented the staff report. He described the location and the 
surrounding area. He described the purpose of establishing the PUD and the objectives of that 
PUD. He described the key components to the PUD, and the development plan, access and 
egress, the drive-thru and stacking, parking, patio area and landscape plan. He explained the need 

Item A-01 - 6 of 14



 
 

-7- 

for the Certificate of Appropriateness. He stated that staff is recommending the Planning/Historic 
Preservation Commission approve File Nos. PHP19-009 and PDEV19-038, and recommend 
approval to City Council for File No. PUD19-001, pursuant to the facts and reasons contained in 
the staff report and attached resolutions, and subject to the conditions of approval. 

 
Mr. Willoughby wanted clarity regarding exterior lighting. 
 
Mr. Zeledon stated this would be determined in building, but that the conditions of approval and 
the PUD state it must be up lighting and complimentary to the design and style of the 
surrounding area.  
 
Mr. Willoughby wanted clarity on the rooftop equipment location. 
 
Mr. Zeledon stated it will be in the tower and completely screened. 

 
PUBLIC TESTIMONY 
 

Mr. Hannibal Petrossi appeared and thanked Mr. Zeledon for all his help and guidance in the 
design.  
 
Mr. Reyes wanted to know if the patio is a solid roof patio.  
 
Mr. Petrossi stated yes, it is. 
 
Mr. Willoughby wanted to know if it would be aluminum.  
 
Mr. Petrossi stated yes it will be.  
 
Mr. Gage wanted clarity regarding the designated MOP parking. 
 
Mr. Petrossi stated MOP parking was for mobile order pickup, but it was taken out and will just 
be normal parking stalls. 
 
Mr. Gage wanted clarity that these stalls were not exclusive for MOP. 
 
Mr. Petrossi stated that was correct. 
 
Mr. Zeledon explained that MOP would be where you place an order from the app, then park and 
pick it up, not delivered to them. 
 
Mr. Gage asked Mr. Petrossi if he agreed to the conditions of approval.  
 
Mr. Petrossi stated yes. 
  
Mr. Willoughby stated it looked like the newer design that they just used in Palm Springs.  

 
As there was no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Willoughby closed the public 
testimony 
 

Item A-01 - 7 of 14



 
 

-8- 

Mr. Reyes made some general comments regarding the design aesthetics as a whole. He wanted 
to thank them for working with the city staff and the landscape architecture worked into the 
project which compliments what went in at the park, with urban trees in the urban spaces. He 
stated he likes the drive isle being screened and the separate driveways for the entrance and drive 
thru.  
 
Mr. Gage stated he was excited to have Starbucks coming into the downtown and he thanked all 
the staff for making that happen.  

 
PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION 
 
It was moved by Gage, seconded by Ricci, to adopt a resolution to approve the 
Certificate of Appropriateness, File No., PHP19-009, subject to conditions of 
approval. Roll call vote: AYES, DeDiemar, Gage, Gregorek, Reyes, Ricci, and 
Willoughby; NOES, none; RECUSE, none; ABSENT, Downs. The motion was 
carried 6 to 0. 
 
It was moved by Reyes, seconded by DeDiemar, to recommend adoption of a 
resolution to approve the Planned Unit Development, File No., PUD19-001, 
subject to conditions of approval. Roll call vote: AYES, DeDiemar, Gage, 
Gregorek, Reyes, Ricci, and Willoughby; NOES, none; RECUSE, none; 
ABSENT, Downs. The motion was carried 6 to 0. 
 
It was moved by Ricci, seconded by Gage, to adopt a resolution to approve the 
Development Plan, File No., PDEV19-038, subject to conditions of approval. 
Roll call vote: AYES, DeDiemar, Gage, Gregorek, Reyes, Ricci, and 
Willoughby; NOES, none; RECUSE, none; ABSENT, Downs. The motion was 
carried 6 to 0. 

 
E. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP REVIEW 

FOR FILE NO. PMTT19-007 (PM 19970): A Tentative Parcel Map to subdivide 0.71-
acre of land into three traditional single-family residential lots located at 1919 South 
Cypress Avenue, within the LDR-5 (Low Density Residential – 2.1 to 5.0 DU/Acre) 
zoning district. The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15315 (Class 15, 
Minor Land Divisions) of the CEQA Guidelines. The proposed project is located within 
the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport and was evaluated and found 
to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land 
Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APN: 1050-331-24) submitted by Mark Raab.  

 
Associate Planner Chen presented the staff report. He described the location and the surrounding 
area and the current home on the property. He described the subdivision and the proposed parcel 
locations and access and the conceptual site plan. He stated that staff is recommending the 
Planning Commission approve File No. PMTT19-007, pursuant to the facts and reasons 
contained in the staff report and attached resolution, and subject to the conditions of approval.  

 
Mr. Gregorek wanted clarity regarding demolition of the buildings to allow for the project. 

 
Mr. Chen stated correct with the exception to the dwelling unit on parcel one. 

Item A-01 - 8 of 14



 
 

-9- 

 
Mr. Gregorek wanted to know what kind of zoning was surrounding the project. 
 
Mr. Chen stated it is LDR5- low density residential on all three sides, except for the high school 
across the street. 
 
Mr. Willoughby wanted to know the minimum lot size for LDR5 zoning. 
 
Mr. Chen stated the minimum lot size is 7200 square feet and these parcels average to about 
9000 square feet. 
 
Mr. Gage wanted clarity regarding the Manzanita access for parcel three and if it was existing.  
 
Mr. Chen stated no there is currently a 6-foot wall there and the access will be added.  
 
Mr. Gage wanted clarity regarding the other homes with access on Manzanita.  
 
Mr. Chen stated the other houses surrounding this parcel have driveway access.  
 
Mr. Gage wanted to know if any comments were received from surrounding residents regarding 
this change in the cul-de-sac. 
  
Mr. Chen stated to date staff hasn’t received any comments regarding the parcel map. 
 
Mr. Ricci wanted clarity regarding the existing utilities and how they would tie in.  
 
Ms. Wahlstrom stated that generally with new construction they try to go underground, but it 
depends on what the master plan calls for and what is existing.  
 
Mr. Lirley, principal engineer, stated Cypress is a local street. 
 
Mr. Zeledon stated that all the sewer, and water, are existing on Cypress and Manzanita and it’s 
just a matter of stubbing in. He stated that when they do the frontage improvements they are 
required to put in the conduit for future fiber. 
 
Mr. Willoughby wanted clarity regarding the standard drives in the area. 
 
Mr. Chen stated the plans are requiring the minimum which is a 10-foot drive. 

 
PUBLIC TESTIMONY 
 

Mr. Andy Wong, the representative for the project appeared and spoke. 
 
Mr. Willoughby asked if Mr. Wong agreed with the conditions of approval. 
 
Mr. Wong stated yes. 
  
Mr. Reyes wanted to know what the plan moving forward is, once the project is approved. 

 

Item A-01 - 9 of 14



 
 

-10- 

Mr. Wong stated he thought it was planned to sell the lots. 
 

Mr. Willoughby wanted clarity that they would divide the lots then sell off to develop. 
 
Mr. Wong stated if the client wishes to move forward, they would sell the lots after they are 
developed.  
 

As there was no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Willoughby closed the public 
testimony 
 

Mr. Reyes stated he knows the area very well and this fits within the homes in the surrounding 
area. 
 
Mr. Gage stated this improves the property and looks like a perfect addition to this area. 

 
PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION 
 
It was moved by Gage, seconded by Gregorek, to adopt a resolution to approve 
the Tentative Parcel Map, File No., PMTT19-007, subject to conditions of 
approval. Roll call vote: AYES, DeDiemar, Gage, Gregorek, Reyes, Ricci, and 
Willoughby; NOES, none; RECUSE, none; ABSENT, Downs. The motion was 
carried 6 to 0. 
 

F. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND SPECIFIC PLAN AMEMEDMENT 
FOR FILE NO. PSPA19-002: An Amendment to the Meredith International Centre 
Specific Plan to establish a Mixed-Use Overlay district on 22.39 acres of land within a 
portion of Planning Area 2 (Urban Commercial) land use district, located at the 
southeast corner of Vineyard Avenue and Inland Empire Boulevard. Staff is 
recommending the adoption of an Addendum to Meredith International Centre Specific 
Plan Amendment Environmental Impact Report (SCH # 2014051020) certified by City 
Council on April 7, 2015. This Application introduces no new significant environmental 
impacts and all previously adopted mitigation measures will be a condition of project 
approval. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario 
International Airport and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and 
criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); 
(APNs: 0110-311-52, 0110-311-53, 0110-311-54, and 0110-311-55) submitted by G.H. 
Palmer Associates. City Council action is required. 

 
G. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW 

FOR FILE NO. PDEV19-025: A Development Plan to construct a mixed-use project 
consisting of 925 multiple-family dwellings and 5,000 square feet of retail space on 
22.39 acres of land located at the southeast corner of Vineyard Avenue and Inland 
Empire Boulevard, within the Planning Area 2 (Urban Commercial) land use district of 
the Meredith International Centre Specific Plan. Staff is recommending the adoption of 
an Addendum to Meredith International Centre Specific Plan Amendment 
Environmental Impact Report (SCH #. 2014051020) certified by City Council on April 
7, 2015. This Application introduces no new significant environmental impacts. All 
previously adopted mitigation measures will be a condition of project approval. The 
proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International 

Item A-01 - 10 of 14



 
 

-11- 

Airport and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the 
Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APNs: 0110-
311-52, 0110-311-53, 0110-311-54, and 0110-311-55) submitted by G.H. Palmer 
Associates.  

 
 Associate Planner Aguilo, presented the staff report. She described the location and the 

surrounding area and the proposed design guidelines and the development plan. She stated that 
staff is recommending the Planning Commission recommend approval for File No. PSPA19-002 
and approve File No. PDEV19-025, pursuant to the facts and reasons contained in the staff report 
and attached resolutions, and subject to the conditions of approval.  

 
Mr. Gage wanted clarity on the retail area being just 5000 square feet. 
 
Ms. Aguilo stated that was correct. 
  
Mr. Reyes wanted to know what kind of retail was being looked at to go in the project.   
 
Ms. Wahlstrom stated that these types of renderings usually attract restaurants for workers to 
come to and for the residents to use. 
 
Mr. Willoughby wanted clarification on the height of the project, compared to the project to the 
east of the Meredith Center. 
  
Ms. Aguilo stated this is similar, as both projects are four stories in height.  

 
PUBLIC TESTIMONY 
 

Mr. Darrel Malamut appeared and thanked staff.  
 
Mr. Reyes wanted to know if there were any ideas for what the retail would be.   
 
Mr. Malamut stated they would be an active use for the residents and the surrounding 
community, something like a brewery and eating establishment. 
 
Mr. Reyes wanted to know what kind of signage or monumentation is being proposed for Inland 
Empire and Vineyard, to bring this together. 
 
Mr. Malamut stated there is a monument sign proposed at grade level on the corner of Inland 
Empire and Vineyard and there is an architectural tower element that will have signage and the 
clubhouse that will have signage as well and at the entry at the leasing center, would have a 
monument,   
 
Mr. Willoughby wanted clarity regarding retail area having a patio deck on top.  
 
Mr. Malamut stated this is proposed as an active use within the residential community, which 
they have envisioned as a co-working, creative office space.  
 
Mr. Willoughby wanted to know if it will be for residents only. 
 

Item A-01 - 11 of 14



 
 

-12- 

Mr. Malamut stated yes, because it has to do with the internal circulation details like stairs, etc. 
 
Mr. Willoughby wanted clarification on the parking numbers. 

 
Mr. Serafin Moran stated there are 35 spaces total with shared parking opportunity with the 
leasing office and there are drop off opportunities for Lyft and Uber services. He also stated that 
should they need additional spaces there will be an agreed parking management plan with the 
leaser that would include possible valet parking within the community.  
 
Mr. Reyes wanted clarification on what kind of site amenities will be provided. 
 
Mr. Malamut stated the amenities would include 3 pools, cabanas and pool house, Jacuzzi, club 
house with banquet facility and a lookout bridge, roof deck with barbecue, and seating elements, 
two fitness centers, sand volleyball court, business center, library, 2 tot lots, 2 dog parks, outdoor 
fitness area. water-features, garden spaces, and the community retail space.  
 
Mr. Willoughby wanted to know if the guard house would be manned. 
 
Mr. Malamut stated yes 24 hours. 
 
Mr. Gage wanted to clarify if the shared parking was with the residents. 
 
Mr. Malamut stated they believe the 35 stales will be adequate, but if needed they would use a 
valet service and use the overflow parking within the community. 
 
Mr. Willoughby wanted to know if Palmer would be managing the apartments as well.  
 
Mr. Malamut stated yes, they have a property management component as well as the developer 
and builder.  

 
Mr. Willoughby wanted to know if they had a timeline to start the project. 
 
Mr. Malamut stated they would like to get the grading plans submitted as soon as possible, and 
they are ready to move forward. 
 
Mr. Willoughby wanted to know if they had an idea of rent range. 
  
Mr. Malamut stated the market sets rent but was looking from a range of $1400 to $2800, for 
studio to 3 bedrooms, as this is a high-quality project. 
  
Mr. Gage wanted to know if they would charge more for rent based on the mountain view.  
 
Mr. Malamut stated yes, they price based on all sorts of characteristics. 

 
As there was no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Willoughby closed the public 
testimony 
 

Mr. Reyes stated he was excited about the project and the design team has done a great job. He 
stated this type of high caliber projects are important to this area, with the proximity to the I-10 

Item A-01 - 12 of 14



 
 

-13- 

freeway and the airport and likes the mixed-use idea and the variety and plentiful amenities.  
 
PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION 
 
It was moved by Gregorek, seconded by Ricci, to recommend adoption of a 
resolution to approve the use of an Addendum. Roll call vote: AYES, 
DeDiemar, Gage, Gregorek, Reyes, Ricci and Willoughby; NOES, none; 
RECUSE, none; ABSENT, Downs. The motion was carried 6 to 0. 
 
It was moved by Reyes, seconded by DeDiemar, to recommend adoption of a 
resolution to approve the Specific Plan Amendment, File No., PSPA19-002, 
subject to conditions of approval. Roll call vote: AYES, DeDiemar, Gage, 
Gregorek, Reyes, Ricci, and Willoughby; NOES, none; RECUSE, none; 
ABSENT, Downs. The motion was carried 6 to 0. 

 
 It was moved by Gage, seconded by Gregorek, to adopt a resolution to approve the 

Development Plan, File No., PDEV19-025, subject to the conditions of approval. Roll 
call vote: AYES, DeDiemar, Gage, Gregorek, Reyes, Ricci, and Willoughby; NOES, 
none; RECUSE, none; ABSENT, Downs. The motion was carried 6 to 0. 

 
MATTERS FROM THE PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
Old Business Reports From Subcommittees 

 
Historic Preservation (Standing): This subcommittee met on Nov. 14, 2019 

• Discussed the renovation to the Bank of Italy and Bumstead Bicycles 
 
Development Code Review (Ad-hoc): This subcommittee did not meet. 

 
Zoning General Plan Consistency (Ad-hoc): This subcommittee did not meet. 
 
New Business 
   

Mr. Ricci stated that on November 7th, he, Ms. DeDiemar, and Mr. Downs attended a Planning 
Commission Workshop through the Inland Empire Section of APA, where the Legacy Award 
was presented to Mrs. Delman, for Mr. Delman and all his community work. Mr. Ricci described 
the events topics and activities.  
 
Mr. Reyes wanted to know if there were any new development plans in the works at the 
Mountain and 60 freeway and El Pescador. 
 
Mr. Zeledon stated El Pescador has purchased the building and is currently cleaning it and they 
want to use it in the future for community storage but need a Development Code Amendment to 
do this. He stated there use to be CCRs on the lot with several owners and it was difficult to 
maintain the property, so now El Pescador is bringing up to code and maintaining it at this time. 
 
Mr. Reyes wanted to know if the facade improvements at Mountain and Philadelphia are 
completed. 
 

Item A-01 - 13 of 14



 
 

-14- 

Mr. Zeledon stated he would check on it. 
 
Mr. Willoughby wanted to know what is going in on Holt, near Grove, across from the 
affordable housing project.  
 
Mr. Zeledon stated they are moving forward with a two industrial warehouse building project 
that was approved about two years ago.  
 
Ms. DeDiemar wanted to know if anything was able to be salvaged from the GE Clubhouse. 
 
Mr. Zeledon stated no it was all hazardous.  
 
Mr. Gage asked regarding the parking component for downtown being updated and are we 
thinking ahead to what would be needed for parking, to fit our future successful downtown area. 
 
Ms. Wahlstrom stated there is a parking component already in place and that other parking 
circulation opportunities are being looked at and discussed. 
 
Mr. Zeledon stated they are looking at a “Park Once” concept, and at a new parking model and 
opportunities coming into the C block.  
 
 NOMINATIONS FOR SPECIAL RECOGNITION 

 
None at this time. 
 
DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

 
Ms. Wahlstrom stated the Monthly Activity Report is in their packet. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Reyes motioned to adjourn to December 16, 2019. The meeting was adjourned at 8:32 PM. 
 
 
 

________________________________ 
Secretary Pro Tempore 

 
 
 

________________________________ 
Chairman, Planning Commission 

Item A-01 - 14 of 14



Case Planner:  Luis E. Batres Hearing Body Date Decision Action 

Planning Director 
Approval: 

 DAB 12/2/2019 Approval Recommend 
PC 12/16/2019 Final 

Submittal Date:  4/1/2019 CC 

FILE NO.: PDEV19-021 

SUBJECT: A Development Plan to construct a 21,952-square foot industrial building on 
0.92 acre of land located at 1613 S. Baker Avenue, within the IG (General Industrial) 
zoning district (APN: 0113-414-14); submitted by Robert Riggio. 

PROPERTY OWNER: Robert Riggio 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: That the Planning Commission consider and approve File 
No. PDEV19-021, pursuant to the facts and reasons contained in the staff report and 
attached resolution, and subject to the conditions of approval contained in the attached 
departmental reports. 

PROJECT SETTING: The project site is comprised of 0.92 acres of land located at 1613 
S. Baker Avenue, within the IG (General Industrial) zoning district, and is depicted in
Figure 1: Project Location, below. The project site is surrounded by industrial
developments to the north, south, east and west. The site currently slopes from north to
south at just over 1 percent.

PROJECT ANALYSIS: 

[1] Background — On December 2,
2019, the Development Advisory Board 
(DAB) conducted a hearing to consider the 
subject Development Plan and concluded 
the hearing voting to recommend that the 
Planning Commission approve the 
Application subject to conditions of 
approval, which are included with the 
attached Planning Commission resolution. 

[2] Site Design/Building Layout —The
applicant is requesting Development Plan 
approval to construct an industrial building 
totaling 21,952 square feet, with a floor 
area ratio (FAR) of 0.55. The proposed 
development fronts on to both Locust 
Street and Baker Avenue. The front of the 
building is oriented south; however, the 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
STAFF REPORT
December 16, 2019 

Figure 1: Project Location 

SITE 

Locust Street
 

B
ak

er
 A

ve
nu

e 

Item A-02 - 1 of 49



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDEV19-021 
December 16, 2019 
 

Page 2 of 14 

north and west building elevations, along Locust Street and Baker Avenue, have been 
architecturally designed to look like the front of the building. The proposed building is 
situated on the northern portion of the site and is setback approximately 12 feet from the 
Locust Street (front) property line, 10 feet from the Baker Avenue (street side) property 
line, and 108 feet from the south (rear) property line. A zero-setback condition is proposed 
along the east (interior side) property line. Off-street parking is situated to the south of the 
building (see Exhibit A: Site Plan, attached).  
 
An enclosed yard area has been designed at the rear of the building, with two roll up 
doors and ample maneuvering space. The yard area will be screened from public view 
(from Baker Avenue) by a combination of landscaping and 8-foot tall decorative tilt-up 
screen walls. Tubular steel fencing, at 8 feet in height, is proposed along the east and 
south interior property lines. 

 
[3] Site Access/Circulation —There are two points of vehicular access proposed for 

the project. Primary access is proposed along the southern portion of the project’s Baker 
Avenue frontage. A secondary access is proposed along the eastern portion of the 
project’s Locust Street frontage, with direct access into the building’s warehouse area via 
an at-grade rollup door. The building is being built for Riggio Construction, a 
telecommunications contractor currently based out of Chino, California. It is planned that 
the service crews will load their trucks inside the warehouse, necessitating the proposed 
direct street access. Drivers will enter the warehouse from the south, through two at-grade 
rollup doors located inside the screened yard and will exit the warehouse through the 
Locust Street driveway. Staff has conditioned the project requiring that the Locust Street 
access be used for exiting the site only. 
 

[4] Parking —The project has provided off-street parking pursuant to the “Warehouse 
and Distribution” parking standards specified in the Development Code. The building 
requires a total of 23 parking spaces and 24 spaces have been provided, exceeding the 
minimum requirements of the Development Code. The project is not proposing any dock-
high doors; therefore, no tractor-trailer parking is required.  
 

[5] Architecture —The project is proposing a contemporary architectural style which 
exemplifies the high-quality architecture promoted by the Ontario Development Code and 
the Ontario Plan. Special attention has been given to the use of color, massing, building 
form, materials, and architectural details (see Figure 2: Front Building Perspective, below, 
and Exhibits B and C: Elevations, and Exhibits D: Street View Perspectives, attached). 
This is exemplified through the use of: 
 
 Extensive glazing on storefront and along the towers facing Baker Avenue (West 

Elevation) and Locus Street (East Elevation); 
 Articulation in building footprint and building roof lines; 
 Incorporation of unique horizontal and vertical reveal lines; 
 Incorporation of architectural towers along the north and west elevations; 
 Incorporation of decorative metal canopies across office entry areas; 

Item A-02 - 2 of 49



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDEV19-021 
December 16, 2019 
 

Page 3 of 14 

 Decorative sconce lighting fixtures at office entry areas; 
 Aluminum storefront framing painted light champagne to accentuate the office 

storefronts; 
 Incorporation of stone (Brown Wave 3D Honed) at architectural towers; 
 Projecting architectural “fin” at office pod; 
 Incorporation of a second-story balcony along the west side of the building; and 
 Incorporation of four different building colors (chocolate stream, nova white, 

universal grey, black bean) to add more interest. 
 

 
[6] Landscaping — The Ontario Development Code requires a minimum 15 percent 

landscape coverage for corner parcels, which the project meets. The project will provide 
10-foot landscaped building setbacks along the Baker Avenue and Locust Street 
frontages, and a 5-foot landscaped setback along the southern portion of the parking lot 
area. In addition, landscaping will be provided within the interior area of the parking lot. 
The proposed landscape plan incorporates a combination of 48-, 36-, and 24-inch box 
trees, in addition to a variety of shrubs and ground cover. Proposed trees include Arizona 
Sycamore, Red Push Pistache, Blue Palo Verde, Chinese Elm, Fern Fine, Italian 
Cypress, Little Leaf Myrtle and Coast Live Oak (see Exhibit E—Landscape Plan, 
attached).  
 
The front office entry area and the entry driveways have been designed with decorative 
paving. In addition, an 11-foot by 40-foot patio with decorative paving has been 
incorporated into the west side of the building. The patio area will include outdoor furniture 
(tables & wood benches), enhanced paving, raised planters with accent plants, wood 
screen panels, vertical lattice with vines, and small flowering trees (see Figure 3: Patio 
Area, below). 

Figure 2: Building Perspective 

Item A-02 - 3 of 49



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDEV19-021 
December 16, 2019 
 

Page 4 of 14 

 

 
[7] Utilities (drainage, sewer) —Public utilities (water and sewer) are available to serve 

the project. Additionally, the applicant has submitted a Preliminary Water Quality 
Management Plan (PWQMP), which establishes the project’s compliance with storm 
water discharge/water quality requirements. The PWQMP includes site design measures 
that capture runoff and pollutant transport by minimizing impervious surfaces and 
maximizes low impact development (LID) best management practices (BMPs), such as 
retention and infiltration, bio treatment, and evapotranspiration. The PWQMP proposes 
underground chambers located beneath the off-street parking area, which are designed 
to accept runoff from building roofs, parking lots and project drive aisles.  
 
COMPLIANCE WITH THE ONTARIO PLAN: The proposed project is consistent with the 
principles, goals and policies contained within the Vision, Governance, Policy Plan 
(General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan (TOP). More 
specifically, the goals and policies of TOP that are furthered by the proposed project are 
as follows: 
 

[1] City Council Goals. 
 

 Invest in the Growth and Evolution of the City’s Economy 
 Maintain the Current High Level of Public Safety 
 Operate in a Businesslike Manner 
 Invest in the City’s Infrastructure (Water, Streets, Sewers, Parks, Storm 

Drains and Public Facilities) 
 
  

Figure 3: Patio Area 

Item A-02 - 4 of 49



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDEV19-021 
December 16, 2019 
 

Page 5 of 14 

[2] Vision. 
 

Distinctive Development: 
 

 Commercial and Residential Development 
 

 Development quality that is broadly recognized as distinctive and not 
exclusively tied to the general suburban character typical of much of Southern California. 
 

[3] Governance. 
 

Decision Making: 
 

 Goal G1: Sustained decision-making that consistently moves Ontario towards 
its Vision by using The Ontario Plan as a framework for assessing choices. 
 

 G1-2 Long-term Benefit. We require decisions to demonstrate and 
document how they add value to the community and support the Ontario Vision 
 

[4] Policy Plan (General Plan) 
 
Land Use Element: 

 
 Goal LU2: Compatibility between a wide range of uses. 

 
 LU2-6: Infrastructure Compatibility: We require infrastructure to be 

aesthetically pleasing and in context with the community character. 
 

Community Economics Element: 
 

 Goal CE1: A complete community that provides for all incomes and stages of 
life. 
 

 Goal CE2: A City of distinctive neighborhoods, districts, and corridors, where 
people choose to be. 
 

 CE2-1 Development Projects. We require new development and 
redevelopment to create unique, high-quality places that add value to the community. 
 

 CE2-2 Development Review. We require those proposing new development 
and redevelopment to demonstrate how their projects will create appropriately unique, 
functional and sustainable places that will compete well with their competition within the 
region. 
 

Item A-02 - 5 of 49



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDEV19-021 
December 16, 2019 
 

Page 6 of 14 

 CE2-4 Protection of Investment. We require that new development and 
redevelopment protect existing investment by providing architecture and urban design of 
equal or greater quality. 
 

 CE2-5 Private Maintenance. We require adequate maintenance, upkeep, 
and investment in private property because proper maintenance on private property 
protects property values. 
 

Safety Element: 
 

 Goal S1: Minimized risk of injury, loss of life, property damage and economic 
and social disruption caused by earthquake-induced and other geologic hazards. 
 

 S1-1 Implementation of Regulations and Standards. We require that all new 
habitable structures be designed in accordance with the most recent California Building 
Code adopted by the City, including provisions regarding lateral forces and grading. 
 

Community Design Element: 
 

 Goal CD1: A dynamic, progressive city containing distinct neighborhoods and 
commercial districts that foster a positive sense of identity and belonging among 
residents, visitors, and businesses. 
 

 CD1-1 City Identity. We take actions that are consistent with the City being 
a leading urban center in Southern California while recognizing the diverse character of 
our existing viable neighborhoods. 
 

 CD1-3 Neighborhood Improvement. We require viable existing residential 
and non-residential neighborhoods to be preserved, protected, and enhanced in 
accordance with our land use policies. 
 

 Goal CD2: A high level of design quality resulting in public spaces, 
streetscapes, and developments that are attractive, safe, functional and distinct. 
 

 CD2-1 Quality Architecture. We encourage all development projects to 
convey visual interest and character through: 
 

• Building volume, massing, and height to provide appropriate scale and 
proportion; 

• A true architectural style which is carried out in plan, section and 
elevation through all aspects of the building and site design and appropriate for its setting; 
and 

• Exterior building materials that are visually interesting, high quality, 
durable, and appropriate for the architectural style. 
 

Item A-02 - 6 of 49



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDEV19-021 
December 16, 2019 
 

Page 7 of 14 

 CD2-7 Sustainability. We collaborate with the development community to 
design and build neighborhoods, streetscapes, sites, outdoor spaces, landscaping and 
buildings to reduce energy demand through solar orientation, maximum use of natural 
daylight, passive solar and natural ventilation, building form, mechanical and structural 
systems, building materials and construction techniques. 
 

 CD2-8 Safe Design. We incorporate defensible space design into new and 
existing developments to ensure the maximum safe travel and visibility on pathways, 
corridors, and open space and at building entrances and parking areas by avoiding 
physically and visually isolated spaces, maintenance of visibility and accessibility, and 
use of lighting. 
 

 CD2-9 Landscape Design. We encourage durable landscaping materials 
and designs that enhance the aesthetics of structures, create and define public and 
private spaces, and provide shade and environmental benefits. 
 

 CD2-10 Surface Parking Areas. We require parking areas visible to or used 
by the public to be landscaped in an aesthetically pleasing, safe and environmentally 
sensitive manner. Examples include shade trees, pervious surfaces, urban run-off 
capture and infiltration, and pedestrian paths to guide users through the parking field. 
 

 CD2-12 Site and Building Signage. We encourage the use of sign programs 
that utilize complementary materials, colors, and themes. Project signage should be 
designed to effectively communicate and direct users to various aspects of the 
development and complement the character of the structures. 
 

 CD2-13 Entitlement Process. We work collaboratively with all stakeholders 
to ensure a high degree of certainty in the efficient review and timely processing of all 
development plans and permits. 
 

 Goal CD3: Vibrant urban environments that are organized around intense 
buildings, pedestrian and transit areas, public plazas, and linkages between and within 
developments that are conveniently located, visually appealing and safe during all hours. 
 

 CD3-1 Design. We require that pedestrian, vehicular, bicycle and 
equestrian circulation on both public and private property be coordinated and designed 
to maximize safety, comfort and aesthetics.   
 

 CD3-2 Connectivity Between Streets, Sidewalks, Walkways and Plazas. 
We require landscaping and paving be used to optimize visual connectivity between 
streets, sidewalks, walkways and plazas for pedestrians. 
 

 CD3-3 Building Entrances. We require all building entrances to be 
accessible and visible from adjacent streets, sidewalks or public open spaces. 
 

Item A-02 - 7 of 49



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDEV19-021 
December 16, 2019 
 

Page 8 of 14 

 CD3-5 Paving. We require sidewalks and road surfaces to be of a type and 
quality that contributes to the appearance and utility of streets and public spaces. 
 

 CD3-6 Landscaping. We utilize landscaping to enhance the aesthetics, 
functionality and sustainability of streetscapes, outdoor spaces and buildings. 
 

 Goal CD5: A sustained level of maintenance and improvement of properties, 
buildings and infrastructure that protects the property values and encourages additional 
public and private investments. 
 

 CD5-1 Maintenance of Buildings and Property. We require all public and 
privately-owned buildings and property (including trails and easements) to be properly 
and consistently maintained. 
 

 CD5-2 Maintenance of Infrastructure. We require the continual 
maintenance of infrastructure. 
 
HOUSING ELEMENT COMPLIANCE: The project is consistent with the Housing 
Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan, as the project 
site is not one of the properties in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 
(Available Land by Planning Area) of the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix. 
 
AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLAN (ALUCP) COMPLIANCE: The project 
site is located within the Airport Influence Area of the Ontario International Airport and 
has been found to be consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within the Ontario 
International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW: The project is categorically exempt from the requirements 
of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, 
Infill Development Projects) of the CEQA Guidelines, which consists of projects 
characterized as infill development, and meets all of the following conditions: (a) the 
Project is consistent with the applicable general plan designation and all applicable 
general plan policies, as well as the applicable zoning designation and regulations; (b) 
the proposed development occurs within city limits, on a project site of no more than five 
acres, and is substantially surrounded by urban uses; (c) the project site has no value as 
habitat for endangered, rare, or threatened species; (d) Approval of the Project will not 
result in any significant effects relating to traffic, noise, air quality, or water quality; and 
(e) The Project site can be adequately served by all required utilities and public services. 
 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: See attached department reports. 

Item A-02 - 8 of 49



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDEV19-021 
December 16, 2019 
 

Page 9 of 14 

TECHNICAL APPENDIX: 
 
Surrounding Zoning and Land Use: 

 Existing Land Use General Plan 
Designation Zoning Designation Specific Plan Land Use 

Site Vacant Industrial IG (General Industrial) n/a 

North Industrial Industrial IG (General Industrial) n/a 

South Industrial Industrial IG (General Industrial) n/a 

East Industrial Industrial IG (General Industrial) n/a 

West Industrial Industrial IG (General Industrial) n/a 
 
General Site & Building Statistics 

Item Proposed Min./Max. Standard 
Meets 
Y/N 

Project Area: 0.92 Acres N/A Y 

Building Area: 21,952 N/A Y 

Floor Area Ratio: 0.55 0.55 (Max.) Y 

Building Height: 54-feet 55-feet (Max.) Y 
 
Off-Street Parking: 

Type of Use Building 
Area Parking Ratio Spaces 

Required 
Spaces 

Provided 

Warehouse 20,912 SF 

One space per 1,000 SF for first 20,000 GFA 
and 0.5 per 1,000 SF for building GFA greater 
than 20,000 SF; plus 1 tractor-trailer parking 
space per 4 dock-high loading doors; plus 
required parking for “general business offices” 
when those uses exceed 10% of building GFA 
(Gross Floor Area). 

19 19 

Office (portion of 
building exceeding 
10% of warehouse 
GFA) 

1,040 SF 4 spaces per 1,000 SF of GFA 4 5 

TOTAL 21,952  23 24 
 

Item A-02 - 9 of 49



Page 10 of 14 

Exhibit A—SITE PLAN  

Building 
21,952 sf 

Patio 

Item A-02 - 10 of 49



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDEV19-021 
December 16, 2019 
 

Page 11 of 14 

Exhibit B—ELEVATIONS  

Item A-02 - 11 of 49



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDEV19-021 
December 16, 2019 
 

Page 12 of 14 

Exhibit C—ELEVATIONS 
  

Item A-02 - 12 of 49



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDEV19-021 
December 16, 2019 
 

Page 13 of 14 

Exhibit D—STREET VIEW PERSPECTIVES  

Item A-02 - 13 of 49



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDEV19-021 
December 16, 2019 
 

Page 14 of 14 

Exhibit E—LANDSCAPE PLAN 

Item A-02 - 14 of 49



RESOLUTION NO. 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
ONTARIO, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING FILE NO. PDEV19-021, A 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN TO CONSTRUCT A 21,952 SQUARE FOOT 
INDUSTRIAL BUILDING ON 0.92 ACRES OF LAND LOCATED AT 1613 
S. BAKER AVENUE, WITHIN THE IG (GENERAL INDUSTRIAL) ZONING 
DISTRICT AND MAKING FINDINGS IN SUPPORT THEREOF—APN: 
0113-414-14. 

 
WHEREAS, Robert Riggio ("Applicant") has filed an Application for the approval of 

a Development Plan, File No. PDEV19-021, as described in the title of this Resolution 
(hereinafter referred to as "Application" or "Project"); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Application applies to 0.92-acre of land located along the 
southeast corner of Locust Street and Baker Avenue, at 1613 South Baker Avenue within 
the IG (General Industrial) zone, and is presently vacant land; and 
 

WHEREAS, the property to the north of the Project site is within the IG (General 
Industrial) zoning district and is developed with an industrial building. The property to the 
east is within the IG (General Industrial) zoning district and is developed with an industrial 
building. The property to the south is within the IG (General Industrial) zoning district and 
is developed with an industrial building. The property to the west is within the IG (General 
Industrial) zoning district, and is developed with an industrial building; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Applicant has applied to construct a 21,952-square foot industrial 

warehouse building on the 0.92-acre project site, with a floor area ratio (FAR) of 0.55. 
The Ontario Development Code allows a maximum FAR of 0.55; and 
 

WHEREAS, the proposed building is situated on the northern portion of the site 
and is setback approximately 12 feet from the Locust Street (front) property line, 10 feet 
from the Baker Avenue (street side) property line, and 108 feet from the south (rear) 
property line. A zero-setback condition is proposed along the east (interior side) property 
line. Off-street parking is situated to the south of the building; and 
 

WHEREAS, there are two points of vehicular access proposed for the project. 
Primary access is proposed along the southern portion of the project’s Baker Avenue 
frontage. A secondary access is proposed along the eastern portion of the project’s 
Locust Street frontage, with direct access into the building’s warehouse area through an 
at-grade rollup door; and 
 

WHEREAS, the project has provided off-street parking pursuant to the 
“Warehouse and Distribution” parking standards specified in the Development Code. The 
building requires a total of 23 parking spaces, and 24 spaces have been provided; and 
 

Item A-02 - 15 of 49



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PDEV19-021 
December 16, 2019 
Page 2 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Ontario Development Code requires a minimum 15 percent 
landscape coverage for corner parcels, which the project meets. The project will provide 
10-foot landscaped building setbacks along the Baker Avenue and Locust Street 
frontages, and a 5-foot landscaped setback along the southern portion of the parking lot 
area; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental 
Quality Act (commencing with Public Resources Code Section 21000), hereinafter 
referred to as "CEQA"; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is exempt from CEQA pursuant to a categorical exemption 
(listed in CEQA Guidelines Article 19, commencing with Section 15300) and the 
application of that categorical exemption is not barred by one of the exceptions set forth 
in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and 
 

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the 
Planning Commission the responsibility and authority to review and act on the subject 
Application; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project has been reviewed for consistency with the Housing 
Element of the Policy Plan component of The Ontario Plan, as State Housing Element 
law (as prescribed in Government Code Sections 65580 through 65589.8) requires that 
development projects must be consistent with the Housing Element, if upon consideration 
of all its aspects, it is found to further the purposes, principals, goals, and policies of the 
Housing Element; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario 
International Airport, which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, 
and Los Angeles Counties, and is subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies 
and criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
(hereinafter referred to as “ALUCP”), which applies only to jurisdictions within San 
Bernardino County, and addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight 
impacts of current and future airport activity; and 
 

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings) 
prescribes the manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing 
procedures to be followed, and all such notifications and procedures have been 
completed; and 
 

WHEREAS, on December 2, 2019, the Development Advisory Board of the City of 
Ontario conducted a hearing to consider the Project, and concluded said hearing on that 
date, voting to issue Decision No. DAB19-068, recommending the Planning Commission 
approve the Application; and 

Item A-02 - 16 of 49



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PDEV19-021 
December 16, 2019 
Page 3 
 
 

WHEREAS, on December 16, 2019, the Planning Commission of the City of 
Ontario conducted a hearing to consider the Project, and concluded said hearing on that 
date; and 
 

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Resolution have occurred. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND, DETERMINED, AND RESOLVED 
by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario, as follows: 
 

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the decision-
making authority for the Project, the Planning Commission has reviewed and considered 
the information contained in the administrative record for the Project. Based upon the 
facts and information contained in the administrative record, including all written and oral 
evidence presented to the Planning Commission, the Planning Commission finds as 
follows: 
 

(1) The administrative record has been completed in compliance with CEQA, 
the State CEQA Guidelines, and the City of Ontario Local CEQA Guidelines; and 

 
(2) The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California 

Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, Infill 
Development Projects) of the CEQA Guidelines, which consists of projects characterized 
as infill development, and meets all of the following conditions: (a) the Project is consistent 
with the applicable general plan designation and all applicable general plan policies, as 
well as the applicable zoning designation and regulations; (b) the proposed development 
occurs within city limits, on a project site of no more than five acres, and is substantially 
surrounded by urban uses; (c) the project site has no value as habitat for endangered, 
rare, or threatened species; (d) Approval of the Project will not result in any significant 
effects relating to traffic, noise, air quality, or water quality; and (e) The Project site can 
be adequately served by all required utilities and public services; and 

 
(3) The application of the categorical exemption is not barred by one of the 

exceptions set forth in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and 
 
(4) The determination of CEQA exemption reflects the independent judgment 

of the Planning Commission. 
 

SECTION 2: Housing Element Compliance. Pursuant to the requirements of 
California Government Code Chapter 3, Article 10.6, commencing with Section 65580, as 
the decision-making authority for the Project, the Planning Commission finds that based 
on the facts and information contained in the Application and supporting documentation, 
at the time of Project implementation, the project is consistent with the Housing Element 
of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan, as the project site is 

Item A-02 - 17 of 49



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PDEV19-021 
December 16, 2019 
Page 4 
 
 
not one of the properties in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 (Available 
Land by Planning Area) of the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix. 
 

SECTION 3: Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
(“ALUCP”) Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code 
Section 21670 et seq.) requires that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared 
for all public use airports in the State; and requires that local land use plans and individual 
development proposals must be consistent with the policies set forth in the adopted 
Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, the City Council of the City of 
Ontario approved and adopted the ALUCP, establishing the Airport Influence Area for 
Ontario International Airport (hereinafter referred to as “ONT”), which encompasses lands 
within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and limits future 
land uses and development within the Airport Influence Area, as they relate to noise, 
safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and future airport activity. As 
the decision-making authority for the Project, the Planning Commission has reviewed and 
considered the facts and information contained in the Application and supporting 
documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors, including [1] Safety Criteria 
(ALUCP Table 2-2) and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2] Noise Criteria (ALUCP Table 
2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ALUCP Map 2-3), [3] Airspace protection Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification Zones (ALUCP Map 2-5). As a result, the 
PLANNING COMMISSION, therefore, finds and determines that the Project, when 
implemented in conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the 
policies and criteria set forth within the ALUCP. 
 

SECTION 4: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial 
evidence presented to the Planning Commission during the above-referenced hearing, 
and upon the specific findings set forth in Section 1 through 3, above, the Planning 
Commission hereby concludes as follows: 
 

(1) The proposed development at the proposed location is consistent with 
the goals, policies, plans and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and 
City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan. The proposed Project is 
located within the Industrial land use district of the Policy Plan Land Use Map, and the 
General Industrial zoning district. The development standards and conditions under which 
the proposed Project will be constructed and maintained, is consistent with the goals, 
policies, plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council 
Priorities components of The Ontario Plan. The proposed development is consistent with 
the goals, policies, plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City 
Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan, as the project will contribute to the 
establishment of a dynamic, progressive city containing distinct neighborhoods and 
districts that foster a positive sense of identity and belonging among residents, visitors, 
and businesses (Goal CD1). Furthermore, the project will promote the City’s policy to take 
actions that are consistent with the City being a leading urban center in Southern 

Item A-02 - 18 of 49



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PDEV19-021 
December 16, 2019 
Page 5 
 
 
California while recognizing the diverse character of our existing viable neighborhoods 
(Policy CD1-1); and 
 

(2) The proposed development is compatible with those on adjoining 
sites in relation to location of buildings, with particular attention to privacy, views, 
any physical constraint identified on the site and the characteristics of the area in 
which the site is located. The Project has been designed consistent with the 
requirements of the City of Ontario Development Code and the IG (General Industrial) 
zoning district, including standards relative to the particular land use proposed (industrial 
building), as-well-as building intensity, building and parking setbacks, building height, 
number of off-street parking and loading spaces, on-site and off-site landscaping, and 
fences, walls and obstructions. The project is proposing an FAR of 0.55 which is 
compatible with other similar industrial projects that have been reviewed, and approved 
by the Planning Commission; and 
 

(3) The proposed development will complement and/or improve upon the 
quality of existing development in the vicinity of the project and the minimum 
safeguards necessary to protect the public health, safety and general welfare have 
been required of the proposed project. The Planning Commission has required certain 
safeguards, and impose certain conditions of approval, which have been established to 
ensure that: [i] the purposes of the Development Code are maintained; [ii] the project will 
not endanger the public health, safety or general welfare; [iii] the project will not result in 
any significant environmental impacts; [iv] the project will be in harmony with the area in 
which it is located; and [v] the project will be in full conformity with the Vision, City Council 
Priorities and Policy Plan components of The Ontario Plan. In addition, the project 
includes full on-site and off-site improvements and the project will improve the quality of 
the existing site; and 
 

(4) The proposed development is consistent with the development 
standards and design guidelines set forth in the Development Code, or applicable 
specific plan or planned unit development. The proposed Project has been reviewed 
for consistency with the general development standards and guidelines of the 
Development Code that are applicable to the proposed Project, including building 
intensity, building and parking setbacks, building height, amount of off-street parking and 
loading spaces, parking lot dimensions, design and landscaping, bicycle parking, on-site 
landscaping, and fences and walls, as-well-as those development standards and 
guidelines specifically related to the particular land use being proposed (industrial 
building). As a result of this review, the Planning Commission has determined that the 
Project, when implemented in conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be 
consistent with the development standards and guidelines described in the Development 
Code. 
 

Item A-02 - 19 of 49



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PDEV19-021 
December 16, 2019 
Page 6 
 
 

SECTION 5: Planning Commission Action. Based upon the findings and 
conclusions set forth in Sections 1 through 4, above, the Planning Commission hereby  
APPROVES the herein described Application, subject to each and every condition set 
forth in the Department reports attached hereto as “Attachment A,” and incorporated 
herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 6: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and 
hold harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, 
action or proceeding against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to 
attack, set aside, void, or annul this approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the 
applicant of any such claim, action, or proceeding, and the City of Ontario shall cooperate 
fully in the defense. 
 

SECTION 7: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that 
constitute the record of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located 
at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The 
custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of Ontario. 
 

SECTION 8: Certification to Adoption. The Secretary shall certify to the 
adoption of the Resolution. 
 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - -  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item A-02 - 20 of 49



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PDEV19-021 
December 16, 2019 
Page 7 
 
 

The Secretary Pro Tempore for the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario 
shall certify as to the adoption of this Resolution. 
 

I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly introduced, 
passed and adopted by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario at a special 
meeting thereof held on the 16th day of December 2019, and the foregoing is a full, true 
and correct copy of said Resolution, and has not been amended or repealed. 
 
 
 
 

Jim Willoughby 
Planning Commission Chairman 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 

Cathy Wahlstrom 
Planning Director and 
Secretary to the Planning Commission 

 

Item A-02 - 21 of 49



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PDEV19-021 
December 16, 2019 
Page 8 
 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA   ) 
COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO ) 
CITY OF ONTARIO    ) 
 
 

I, Gwen Berendsen, Secretary Pro Tempore of the Planning Commission of the 
City of Ontario, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that foregoing Resolution No. ____ was duly 
passed and adopted by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario at their special 
meeting held on December 16, 2019, by the following roll call vote, to wit: 
 
 
 
AYES: 
 
NOES: 
 
ABSENT: 
 
ABSTAIN: 
 
 
 
 

Gwen Berendsen 
Secretary Pro Tempore 

 
  

Item A-02 - 22 of 49



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PDEV19-021 
December 16, 2019 
Page 9 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT A: 
 

File No. PDEV19-021 
Departmental Conditions of Approval 

 
 

(Departmental conditions of approval to follow this page) 
 
 

Item A-02 - 23 of 49



Meeting Date: 

File No: 

Related Files: 

City of Ontario 
Planning Department 
303 East B Street 
Ontario, California 91764 
Phone: 909.395.2036 
Fax: 909.395.2420 

Planning Department 
Land Development Division 

Conditions of Approval 

Project Description: 

December 16, 2019 

PDEV19-021 

N/A 

A Development Plan to construct a 21,952-square foot industrial building on 0.92 
acre of land located at 1613 S. Baker Avenue, within the IG (General Industrial) zoning district. 
(APN: 0113-414-14); submitted by Robert Riggio. of3-
Prepared By: Luis E. Batres, Senior Planne 

Phone: 909.395.2431 
Email: Lbatres@ontarioca.gov 

The Planning Department, Land Development Section, conditions of approval applicable to the 
above-described Project, are listed below. The Project shall comply with each condition of approval listed 
below: 

1.0 Standard Conditions of Approval. The project shall comply with the Standard Conditions for New 
Development, adopted by City Council Resolution No. 2017-027 on April 18, 2017. A copy of the Standard 
Conditions for New Development may be obtained from the Planning Department or City Clerk/Records 
Management Department. 

2.0 Special Conditions of Approval. In addition to the Standard Conditions for New Development 
identified in condition no. 1.0, above, the project shall comply with the following special conditions of 
approval: 

2.1 Time Limits. 

(a) Development Plan approval shall become null and void 2 years following the
effective date of application approval, unless a building permit is issued and construction is commenced, 
and diligently pursued toward completion, or a time extension has been approved by the Planning Director. 
This condition does not supersede any individual time limits specified herein, or any other departmental 
conditions of approval applicable to the Project, for the performance of specific conditions or improvements. 

2.2 General Requirements. The Project shall comply with the following general requirements: 

(a) All construction documentation shall be coordinated for consistency, including, but
not limited to, architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, landscape and irrigation, grading, 
utility and street improvement plans. All such plans shall be consistent with the approved entitlement plans 
on file with the Planning Department. 

(b) The project site shall be developed in conformance with the approved plans on file
with the City. Any variation from the approved plans must be reviewed and approved by the Planning 
Department prior to building permit issuance. 

(c) The herein-listed conditions of approval from all City departments shall be included
in the construction plan set for project, which shall be maintained on site during project construction. 

Item A-02 - 24 of 49



Item A-02 - 25 of 49



Item A-02 - 26 of 49



Item A-02 - 27 of 49



Item A-02 - 28 of 49



Item A-02 - 29 of 49



Item A-02 - 30 of 49



Item A-02 - 31 of 49



Item A-02 - 32 of 49



Item A-02 - 33 of 49



Item A-02 - 34 of 49



Item A-02 - 35 of 49



Item A-02 - 36 of 49



Item A-02 - 37 of 49



Item A-02 - 38 of 49



Item A-02 - 39 of 49



Item A-02 - 40 of 49



Item A-02 - 41 of 49



Item A-02 - 42 of 49



Item A-02 - 43 of 49



Item A-02 - 44 of 49



Item A-02 - 45 of 49



Item A-02 - 46 of 49



Item A-02 - 47 of 49



Item A-02 - 48 of 49



Item A-02 - 49 of 49



Case Planner:  Denny D. Chen Hearing Body Date Decision Action 
Planning Director 

Approval: 
 DAB 12/2/19 Approval Recommend 

Submittal Date:  6/19/2019 PC 12/16/19 Final 

FILE NO.: PDEV19-033 

SUBJECT: A Development Plan to construct a 79,220 square-foot industrial building on 
3.38 acres of land, located at 540 East Maitland Street, within the IL (Light Industrial) 
zoning district (APNs: 1049-501-12, 1049-501-13 and 1049-501-14); submitted by Lake 
Creek Industrial, LLC.  

PROPERTY OWNER: CIVF V-CA1W05, LLC 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: That the Planning Commission consider and approve File 
No. PDEV19-033 pursuant to the facts and reasons contained in the staff report and 
attached resolution, and subject to the conditions of approval contained in the attached 
departmental reports. 

PROJECT SETTING: The project site is comprised of 3.38 acres of land located at the 
southwest corner of Maitland Street and Monterey Avenue, at 540 East Maitland Street, 
within the IL (Light Industrial) zoning district, and is depicted in Figure 1: Project Location, 
below. The project site is currently developed with an industrial building that is to be razed 
to facilitate the development of the proposed project. 

The property to the north of the project 
site is within the IL (Light Industrial) 
zoning district and is developed with 
industrial buildings. The property to 
the east is within the IL zoning district 
and is developed with railroad tracks 
operated by the Southern Pacific 
Transportation Company. Properties 
further east, across Monterey Avenue, 
are within the LDR-5 (Low Density 
Residential – 2.1 to 5.0 DUs/Acre) 
zoning district and are developed with 
single-family homes. The property to 
the south, is within the IL zoning 
district and is developed with a mix of 
industrial buildings and outdoor 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
STAFF REPORT
December 16, 2019 

Figure 1: Project Location 

Item A-03 - 1 of 55



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDEV19-033 
December 16, 2019 
 
 

Page 2 of 16 

storage uses. The property to the west is within the IL zoning district and is developed 
with a church and single-family homes. 
 
PROJECT ANALYSIS: 

 
[1] Background — The applicant is requesting Development Plan approval to 

construct a 79,220-square foot industrial building on the above-described project site, 
with a floor area ratio of 0.54. On December 2, 2019, the Development Advisory Board 
reviewed the subject application and recommended that the Planning Commission 
approve the proposed project, subject to departmental conditions of approval included 
with this report. 
 

[2] Site Design/Building Layout — The proposed building’s office element and main 
entrance is situated at the northwest corner of the building, fronting onto Maitland Street 
to the north and the employee and visitor parking area to the west. The new building will 
be setback 11 feet from the Maitland Street (north) property line, 35 feet from the east 
side property line, 40 feet from the south (rear) property line, and 35 feet from the west 
side property line. 
 
A yard area designed for tractor-trailer parking, truck maneuvering, loading activities, and 
outdoor staging is located on the west side of the proposed building. The yard area will 
be screened from public view by a combination of building walls and 10-foot screen walls 
with view-obstructing access gates (see Exhibit B—Site Plan, attached). 
 

[3] Site Access/Circulation — Primary access to parking and loading areas is provided 
from Maitland Street by way of a 35-foot wide driveway located at the northwest corner 
of the site. Secondary site access is provided to Maitland Street by way of a 24-foot wide 
driveway located at the northeast corner of the site, which allows for vehicular circulation 
completely around the building (see Exhibit B – Site Plan, attached). 
 

[4] Parking — The project has provided 52 off-street parking spaces consistent with 
the “Warehouse and Distribution” parking standards specified in the Ontario Development 
Code, which requires one space for each 1,000 square feet of gross floor area (GFA) for 
the first 20,000 square feet, plus one space for each 2,000 square feet of GFA in excess 
of 20,000 square feet. Furthermore, up to 10 percent of the building GFA may be 
improved with office space without having to provide additional parking. Office 
improvements exceeding 10 percent of the building GFA must be parked at the rate of 4 
spaces per 1,000 square feet of additional office area. 
 
Additionally, the City’s off-street parking and loading standards require that the project 
provides a minimum of one tractor-trailer parking space per every four dock-high loading 
spaces. There are eight dock-high loading spaces proposed with two tractor-trailer 
parking spaces provided, meeting the minimum tractor-trailer parking requirement for the 
project. 

Item A-03 - 2 of 55



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDEV19-033 
December 16, 2019 
 
 

Page 3 of 16 

[5] Community Outreach – The project site is surrounded by residential properties to 
the east and west. To ensure community input from the surrounding residents, a Notice 
was mailed to all property owners within 300-feet of the project site on November 8, 2019. 
The intent of the notification was to inform the surrounding property owners of the 
proposed project and to address any questions or concerns regarding the project. To 
date, staff has not received any phone calls, correspondence, inquiries, and/or emails 
regarding the project. 
 

[6] Architecture — The proposed building elevations illustrate the type of high-quality 
architecture promoted by the Ontario Development Code’s development standards and 
design guidelines. The building will be composed of concrete tilt-up walls that incorporate 
a contemporary architectural style (see Figure 2: Building Perspective, below, and Exhibit 
C—Front Office Perspective and Exhibits D and E—Building Elevations, attached). The 
building design incorporates articulation in the building footprint, incorporating a 
combination of recessed and popped-out wall areas, and articulation in the building 
parapet/roof line, which serves to accentuate the building’s entries. To accent the building 
design, the following materials, finishes, and fixtures have been incorporated into the 
design of the building: 
 

 Incorporation of four different accent colors and color blocking throughout all 
sides of the building; 

 Multiple Horizontal and vertical reveal lines; 
 Recessed windows and wall panels at key locations; 
 Incorporation of decorative canopies at office main entrance; 
 Use of double-glazed windows with a clear anodized mullion system; and 
 Extensive use of glazing at office areas and corner elements 

 

 
[7] Landscaping — The Project proposes a 10 percent landscape coverage, meeting 

the Development Code’s minimum landscape coverage requirement for interior lots 

Figure 2: Building Perspective 

Item A-03 - 3 of 55



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDEV19-033 
December 16, 2019 
 
 

Page 4 of 16 

located within the IL (Light Industrial) zoning district. The landscape pallet for the project 
incorporates a mixture of 24-, 36-, and 48-inch box accent and shade trees. Some of the 
proposed trees include Western Redbud, Lavender Crape Myrtle, Afghan Pine, Coast 
Live Oak, along with a variety of low water use grasses, shrubs, and groundcovers, such 
as Fountain Grass, Silverberry, and Coyote Brush. 
 
The project has provided ample landscaped setback areas, including: 11 feet along the 
building’s north (Maitland Street) and east side property lines, 7.5 feet along the south 
(rear) property line, 35 feet along the west side property line, within the visitor parking 
area, and 5 feet along the west side property line, in front of the screened loading/truck-
dock area (see Exhibit F—Landscape Plan, attached). Additionally, an employee break 
area is provided along the west side of the building, which features picnic tables and 
chairs surrounded by shade trees on the west and north sides (see Exhibit G—Patio Area 
Perspective, attached). 
 

[8] Utilities (drainage, sewer) — Public utilities (water and sewer) are available to 
serve the project. Additionally, the Applicant has submitted a Preliminary Water Quality 
Management Plan (PWQMP), which establishes the project’s compliance with storm 
water discharge/water quality requirements. The PWQMP includes site design measures 
that capture runoff and pollutant transport by minimizing impervious surfaces and 
maximizing low impact development (LID) best management practices (BMPs), such as 
retention and infiltration, biotreatment, and evapotranspiration. The PWQMP proposes a 
vegetated swale designed to accept runoff from building roofs, parking lots and project 
roadways, which lead to an underground stormwater infiltration system. The proposed 
underground chambers will be located along the south portion of the site and any overflow 
drainage will be conveyed to the surrounding streets. 
 
COMPLIANCE WITH THE ONTARIO PLAN: The proposed project is consistent with the 
principles, goals and policies contained within the Vision, Governance, Policy Plan 
(General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan (TOP). More 
specifically, the goals and policies of TOP that are furthered by the proposed project are 
as follows: 
 

[1] City Council Goals. 
 

 Invest in the Growth and Evolution of the City’s Economy 
 Operate in a Businesslike Manner 
 Invest in the City’s Infrastructure (Water, Streets, Sewers, Parks, Storm 

Drains and Public Facilities) 
 
  

Item A-03 - 4 of 55



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDEV19-033 
December 16, 2019 
 
 

Page 5 of 16 

[2] Vision. 
 

Distinctive Development: 
 

 Commercial and Residential Development 
 

 Development quality that is broadly recognized as distinctive and not 
exclusively tied to the general suburban character typical of much of Southern California. 
 

[3] Governance. 
 

Decision Making: 
 

 Goal G1: Sustained decision-making that consistently moves Ontario towards 
its Vision by using The Ontario Plan as a framework for assessing choices. 
 

 G1-2 Long-term Benefit. We require decisions to demonstrate and 
document how they add value to the community and support the Ontario Vision 
 

[4] Policy Plan (General Plan) 
 

Land Use Element: 
 

 Goal LU2: Compatibility between a wide range of uses. 
 

 LU2-6: Infrastructure Compatibility: We require infrastructure to be 
aesthetically pleasing and in context with the community character. 

 
Community Design Element: 

 
 Goal CD2: A high level of design quality resulting in public spaces, 

streetscapes, and developments that are attractive, safe, functional and distinct. 
 

 CD2-1 Quality Architecture. We encourage all development projects to 
convey visual interest and character through: 
 

• Building volume, massing, and height to provide appropriate scale and 
proportion; 

• A true architectural style which is carried out in plan, section and 
elevation through all aspects of the building and site design and appropriate for its setting; 
and 

• Exterior building materials that are visually interesting, high quality, 
durable, and appropriate for the architectural style. 

 

Item A-03 - 5 of 55



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDEV19-033 
December 16, 2019 
 
 

Page 6 of 16 

 CD2-9 Landscape Design. We encourage durable landscaping materials 
and designs that enhance the aesthetics of structures, create and define public and 
private spaces, and provide shade and environmental benefits. 
 

 CD2-10 Surface Parking Areas. We require parking areas visible to or used 
by the public to be landscaped in an aesthetically pleasing, safe and environmentally 
sensitive manner. Examples include shade trees, pervious surfaces, urban run-off 
capture and infiltration, and pedestrian paths to guide users through the parking field. 
 
HOUSING ELEMENT COMPLIANCE: The project is consistent with the Housing 
Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan, as the project 
site is not one of the properties in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 
(Available Land by Planning Area) of the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix. 
 
AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLAN (ALUCP) COMPLIANCE: The project 
site is located within the Airport Influence Area of the Ontario International Airport and 
has been found to be consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within the Ontario 
International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW: The project is categorically exempt from the requirements 
of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, 
Infill Development Projects) of the CEQA Guidelines, which consists of projects 
characterized as infill development, and meets all of the following conditions: (a) the 
Project is consistent with the applicable general plan designation and all applicable 
general plan policies, as well as the applicable zoning designation and regulations; (b) 
the proposed development occurs within city limits, on a project site of no more than five 
acres, and is substantially surrounded by urban uses; (c) the project site has no value as 
habitat for endangered, rare, or threatened species; (d) Approval of the Project will not 
result in any significant effects relating to traffic, noise, air quality, or water quality; and 
(e) The Project site can be adequately served by all required utilities and public services. 
 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: See attached department reports. 
  

Item A-03 - 6 of 55



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDEV19-033 
December 16, 2019 
 
 

Page 7 of 16 

TECHNICAL APPENDIX: 
 
Surrounding Zoning and Land Use: 

 Existing Land Use General Plan 
Designation Zoning Designation Specific Plan Land Use 

Site Two Industrial Metal 
Buildings Industrial IL (Light Industrial) N/A 

North Industrial Building Industrial  IL (Light Industrial) N/A 

South Industrial Buildings and 
Storage Yard Industrial IL (Light Industrial) N/A 

East Railroad & Single-
Family Homes 

Low Density 
Residential with 

Industrial Overlay 

LDR5 (Low Density 
Residential – 2.1 to 5.0 

DUs/Acre) 
N/A 

West 

Single-Family Homes 
and religious assembly 

(Friendship Baptist 
Church) 

Industrial IL (Light Industrial) N/A 

 
General Site & Building Statistics 

Item Proposed Min./Max. Standard 
Meets 
Y/N 

Project Area: 
3.38 Ac (147,233 SF) 

 
10,000 SF (Min.) Y 

Building Area 79,220 SF 80,978 SF (Max.) Y 

Floor Area Ratio (FAR) 0.54 0.55 (Max.) Y 

Building Height: 46 FT 55 FT (Max.) Y 
 
Off-Street Parking: 

Type of Use Building 
Area Parking Ratio Spaces 

Required 
Spaces 

Provided 

Warehouse Building 79,220 SF 

One space per 1,000 SF for first 20,000 GFA 
and 0.5 per 1,000 SF for building GFA greater 
than 20,000 SF; plus 1 tractor-trailer parking 
space per 4 dock-high loading doors; plus 
required parking for “general business offices” 
when those uses exceed 10% of building GFA 
(Gross Floor Area). 

50 52 

Tractor-Trailer Parking 
 

n/a 1 tractor trailer parking per 4 dock high doors 
(8 dock-high doors proposed) 2 2 

 

Item A-03 - 7 of 55



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDEV19-033 
December 16, 2019 
 
 

Page 8 of 16 

Exhibit A—PROJECT LOCATION  

Item A-03 - 8 of 55



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDEV19-033 
December 16, 2019 
 
 

Page 9 of 16 

Exhibit B—SITE PLAN 
 

  

Item A-03 - 9 of 55



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDEV19-033 
December 16, 2019 
 
 

Page 10 of 16 

Exhibit C—FRONT OFFICE PERSPECTIVE  

View of Northeast Corner of the Building 

Item A-03 - 10 of 55



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDEV19-033 
December 16, 2019 
 
 

Page 11 of 16 

Exhibit D—BUILDING ELEVATIONS  

Item A-03 - 11 of 55



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDEV19-033 
December 16, 2019 
 
 

Page 12 of 16 

Exhibit E—BUILDING ELEVATIONS  

Item A-03 - 12 of 55



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDEV19-033 
December 16, 2019 
 
 

Page 13 of 16 

Exhibit F—LANDSCAPE PLAN 

  

Item A-03 - 13 of 55



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDEV19-033 
December 16, 2019 
 
 

Page 14 of 16 

Exhibit G—PATIO AREA PERSPECTIVE 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item A-03 - 14 of 55



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDEV19-033 
December 16, 2019 
 
 

Page 15 of 16 

Exhibit H – SITE PHOTOS 

 
EXISTING BUILDINGS ON PROJECT SITE 

 

 
                              NORTHEAST VIEW OF EXISTING DRIVEWAY 
 
 
 

Item A-03 - 15 of 55



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDEV19-033 
December 16, 2019 
 
 

Page 16 of 16 

Exhibit I – SITE PHOTOS 
 

 
                                          LOOKING SOUTHEAST OF MAITLAND STREET & MONTEREY AVENUE 

 

 
                                                        NORTHEAST VIEW OF MAITLAND ST & MONTEREY AVE 

Item A-03 - 16 of 55



RESOLUTION NO.  
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
ONTARIO, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING FILE NO. PDEV19-033, A 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN TO CONSTRUCT A 79,220-SQUARE FOOT 
INDUSTRIAL BUILDING ON 3.38 ACRES OF LAND, LOCATED AT 540 
EAST MAITLAND STREET, WITHIN THE IL (LIGHT INDUSTRIAL) 
ZONING DISTRICT, AND MAKING FINDINGS IN SUPPORT THEREOF—
APNS: 1049-501-12, 1049-501-13, AND 1049-501-14. 

 
 

WHEREAS, Lake Creek Industrial, LLC, (hereinafter referred to as "Applicant") has 
filed an Application for the approval of a Development Plan, File No. PDEV19-033, as 
described in the title of this Resolution (hereinafter referred to as "Application" or 
"Project"); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Application applies to 3.38 acres of land generally located at the 
southwest corner of Maitland Street and Monterey Avenue, at 540 East Maitland Street, 
within the IL (Light Industrial) zoning district; and 
 

WHEREAS, the property to the north of the project site is within the IL (Light 
Industrial) zoning district and is developed with industrial buildings. The property to the 
east is within the IL (Light Industrial) zoning district and is developed with railroad tracks 
operated by the Southern Pacific Transportation Company. Properties further east, 
across Monterey Avenue, are within the LDR-5 (Low Density Residential – 2.1 to 5.0 
DUs/Acre) zoning district and are developed with single-family homes. The property to 
the south, is within the IL zoning district and is developed with industrial buildings and 
outdoor storage uses. The property to the west is within the IL zoning district and is 
developed with a church and single-family homes; and 
 

WHEREAS, on June 19, 2019, the Applicant has applied to construct a 79,220 
square foot industrial warehouse building on the 3.38-acre project site, with a floor area 
ratio (FAR) of 0.54. The Ontario Development Code allows a maximum FAR of 0.55; and 
 

WHEREAS, the proposed building’s office element and main entrance is situated 
at the northwest corner of the building, fronting onto Maitland Street to the north and the 
employee and visitor parking area to the west. The new building will be setback 11 feet 
from the Maitland Street (north) property line, 35 feet from the east side property line, 40 
feet from the south (rear) property line, and 35 feet from the west side property line; and 
 

WHEREAS, a yard area designed for tractor-trailer parking, truck maneuvering, 
loading activities, and outdoor staging is located on the west side of the proposed building. 
The yard area will be screened from public view by a combination of building walls and 
10-foot screen walls with view-obstructing access gates; and 
 

Item A-03 - 17 of 55



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PDEV19-033 
December 16, 2019 
Page 2 
 
 

WHEREAS, primary access to parking and loading areas is provided from Maitland 
Street by way of a 35-foot wide driveway located at the northwest corner of the site. 
Secondary site access is provided to Maitland Street by way of a 24-foot wide driveway 
located at the northeast corner of the site, which allows for vehicular circulation 
completely around the building; and 
 

WHEREAS, the project has provided off-street parking pursuant to the 
“Warehouse and Distribution” parking standards specified in the Development Code. The 
building requires a total of 52 parking spaces, and 52 spaces have been provided. 
Additionally, the City’s off-street parking and loading standards require that the project 
provides a minimum of one tractor-trailer parking space for each four dock-high loading 
spaces. There are eight dock-high loading spaces proposed with two tractor-trailer 
parking spaces provided, meeting the minimum tractor-trailer parking requirement for the 
project; and 
 

WHEREAS, the project site is surrounded by residential properties to the east and 
west. To ensure community input from the surrounding residents, a Notice was mailed to 
all property owners within 300-feet of the project site on November 8, 2019. The intent of 
the notification was to inform the surrounding property owners of the proposed project 
and to address any questions or concerns regarding the project. To date, staff has not 
received any phone calls, correspondence, inquiries, and/or emails regarding the project; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the proposed building elevations illustrate the type of high-quality 
architecture promoted by the Ontario Development Code’s development standards and 
design guidelines. The building will be composed of concrete tilt-up walls that incorporate 
a contemporary architectural style. The building design incorporates articulation in the 
building footprint, incorporating a combination of recessed and popped-out wall areas, 
and articulation in the building parapet/roof line, which serves to accentuate the building’s 
entries; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project proposes a 10 percent landscape coverage, meeting the 
Development Code’s minimum landscape coverage requirement for interior lots located 
within the IL (Light Industrial) zoning district; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental 
Quality Act (Public Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA"); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is exempt from CEQA pursuant to a categorical exemption 
(listed in CEQA Guidelines Article 19, commencing with Section 15300) and the 
application of that categorical exemption is not barred by one of the exceptions set forth 
in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and 
 

Item A-03 - 18 of 55



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PDEV19-033 
December 16, 2019 
Page 3 
 
 

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the 
Planning Commission the responsibility and authority to review and act on the subject 
Application; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project has been reviewed for consistency with the Housing 
Element of the Policy Plan component of The Ontario Plan, as State Housing Element 
law (as prescribed in Government Code Sections 65580 through 65589.8) requires that 
development projects must be consistent with the Housing Element, if upon consideration 
of all its aspects, it is found to further the purposes, principals, goals, and policies of the 
Housing Element; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario 
International Airport, which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, 
and Los Angeles Counties, and is subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies 
and criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
(“ALUCP”), which applies only to jurisdictions within San Bernardino County, and 
addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and 
future airport activity; and 
 

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings) 
prescribes the manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing 
procedures to be followed, and all such notifications and procedures have been 
completed; and 
 

WHEREAS, on December 2, 2019, the Development Advisory Board of the City of 
Ontario conducted a hearing to consider the Project, and concluded said hearing on that 
date, voting to issue Decision DAB19-069, recommending the Planning Commission 
approve the Application; and 
 

WHEREAS, on December 16, 2019, the Planning Commission of the City of 
Ontario conducted a hearing to consider the Project, and concluded said hearing on that 
date; and 
 

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Resolution have occurred. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND, DETERMINED, AND RESOLVED 
by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario, as follows: 
 

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the decision-
making body for the Project, the Planning Commission has reviewed and considered the 
information contained in the administrative record for the Project. Based upon the facts 
and information contained in the administrative record, including all written and oral 

Item A-03 - 19 of 55



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PDEV19-033 
December 16, 2019 
Page 4 
 
 
evidence presented to the Planning Commission, the Planning Commission finds as 
follows: 
 

(1) The administrative record has been completed in compliance with CEQA, 
the State CEQA Guidelines, and the City of Ontario Local CEQA Guidelines; and 
 

(2) The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, Infill 
Development Projects) of the CEQA Guidelines, which consists of projects characterized 
as infill development, and meets all of the following conditions: (a) the Project is consistent 
with the applicable general plan designation and all applicable general plan policies, as 
well as the applicable zoning designation and regulations; (b) the proposed development 
occurs within city limits, on a project site of no more than five acres, and is substantially 
surrounded by urban uses; (c) the project site has no value as habitat for endangered, 
rare, or threatened species; (d) Approval of the Project will not result in any significant 
effects relating to traffic, noise, air quality, or water quality; and (e) The Project site can 
be adequately served by all required utilities and public services; and 
 

(3) The application of the categorical exemption is not barred by one of the 
exceptions set forth in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and 
 

(4) The determination of CEQA exemption reflects the independent judgment 
of the Planning Commission. 
 

SECTION 2: Housing Element Compliance. Pursuant to the requirements of 
California Government Code Chapter 3, Article 10.6, commencing with Section 65580, as 
the decision-making body for the Project, the Planning Commission finds that based on 
the facts and information contained in the Application and supporting documentation, at 
the time of Project implementation, the project is consistent with the Housing Element of 
the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan, as the project site is not 
one of the properties in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 (Available 
Land by Planning Area) of the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix. 
 

SECTION 3: Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
(“ALUCP”) Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code 
Section 21670 et seq.) requires that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared 
for all public use airports in the State; and requires that local land use plans and individual 
development proposals must be consistent with the policies set forth in the adopted 
Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, the City Council of the City of 
Ontario approved and adopted the Ontario International Airport Land use Compatibility 
Plan (“ALUCP”), establishing the Airport Influence Area for Ontario International Airport 
(“ONT”), which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los 
Angeles Counties, and limits future land uses and development within the Airport 

Item A-03 - 20 of 55



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PDEV19-033 
December 16, 2019 
Page 5 
 
 
Influence Area, as they relate to noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts 
of current and future airport activity. As the decision-making body for the Project, the 
Planning Commission has reviewed and considered the facts and information contained 
in the Application and supporting documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors, 
including [1] Safety Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-2) and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2] 
Noise Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ALUCP Map 2-3), [3] 
Airspace protection Zones (ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification Zones 
(ALUCP Map 2-5). As a result, the Planning Commission, therefore, finds and determines 
that the Project, when implemented in conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be 
consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within the ALUCP. 
 

SECTION 4: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial 
evidence presented to the Planning Commission during the above-referenced hearing 
and upon the specific findings set forth in Sections 1 through 4, above, the Planning 
Commission hereby concludes as follows: 
 

(1) The proposed development at the proposed location is consistent with 
the goals, policies, plans and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and 
City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan. The proposed Project is 
located within the Industrial land use district of the Policy Plan Land Use Map, and the IL 
(Light Industrial) zoning district. The development standards and conditions under which 
the proposed Project will be constructed and maintained, is consistent with the goals, 
policies, plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council 
Priorities components of The Ontario Plan. The project will contribute to the establishment 
of “a dynamic, progressive city containing distinct neighborhoods and districts that foster 
a positive sense of identity and belonging among residents, visitors, and businesses.” 
(Goal CD1); and 
 

(2) The proposed development is compatible with those on adjoining 
sites in relation to location of buildings, with particular attention to privacy, views, 
any physical constraint identified on the site and the characteristics of the area in 
which the site is located. The Project has been designed consistent with the 
requirements of the City of Ontario Development Code and the IL (Light Industrial) zoning 
district, as-well-as building intensity, building and parking setbacks, building height, 
number of off-street parking and loading spaces, on-site and off-site landscaping, and 
fences, walls and obstructions. The project is proposing a Floor Area Ratio (FAR) of 0.54, 
which is compatible with other similar industrial projects that have been reviewed and 
approved by the Development Advisory Board and the Planning Commission; and 
 

(3) The proposed development will complement and/or improve upon the 
quality of existing development in the vicinity of the project and the minimum 
safeguards necessary to protect the public health, safety and general welfare have 
been required of the proposed project. The Development Advisory Board has required 

Item A-03 - 21 of 55



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PDEV19-033 
December 16, 2019 
Page 6 
 
 
certain safeguards, and impose certain conditions of approval, which have been 
established to ensure that: [i] the purposes of the IL (Light Industrial) zoning district, which 
is where the project is located, are maintained; [ii] the project will not endanger the public 
health, safety or general welfare; [iii] the project will not result in any significant 
environmental impacts; [iv] the project will be in harmony with the area in which it is 
located; and [v] the project will be in full conformity with the Vision, City Council Priorities 
and Policy Plan components of The Ontario Plan; and 
 

(4) The proposed development is consistent with the development 
standards and design guidelines set forth in the Development Code, or applicable 
specific plan or planned unit development. The proposed Project has been reviewed 
for consistency with the general development standards and guidelines of the 
Development Code that are applicable to the proposed Project, including building 
intensity, building and parking setbacks, building height, amount of off-street parking and 
loading spaces, parking lot dimensions, design and landscaping, bicycle parking, on-site 
landscaping, and fences and walls, as-well-as those development standards and 
guidelines specifically related to the IL (Light Industrial) zoning district. As a result of this 
review, the Development Advisory Board has determined that the Project, when 
implemented in conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the 
development standards and guidelines described in the Development Code. 

 
SECTION 5: Planning Commission Action. Based on the findings and 

conclusions set forth in Sections 1 through 4, above, the Planning Commission hereby 
APPROVES the Application subject to each and every condition set forth in the 
Department reports included as “Attachment A” and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 6: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and 
hold harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, 
action or proceeding against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to 
attack, set aside, void or annul this approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the 
applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, and the City of Ontario shall cooperate 
fully in the defense. 
 

SECTION 7: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that 
constitute the record of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located 
at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The 
custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of Ontario. The records are 
available for inspection by any interested person, upon request. 
 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - 
 
 
 

Item A-03 - 22 of 55



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PDEV19-033 
December 16, 2019 
Page 7 
 
 

The Secretary Pro Tempore for the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario 
shall certify as to the adoption of this Resolution. 

 
I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly introduced, 

passed and adopted by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario at a special 
meeting thereof held on the 16th day of December 2019, and the foregoing is a full, true 
and correct copy of said Resolution, and has not been amended or repealed. 
 
 
 
 

Jim Willoughby 
Planning Commission Chairman 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 

Cathy Wahlstrom 
Planning Director and 
Secretary of Planning Commission 

 
 

 

Item A-03 - 23 of 55



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PDEV19-033 
December 16, 2019 
Page 8 
 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 
COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO ) 
CITY OF ONTARIO ) 
 
I, Gwen Berendsen, Secretary Pro Tempore of the Planning Commission of the City of 
Ontario, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that foregoing Resolution [Insert PC No.] was duly 
passed and adopted by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario at their special 
meeting held on December 16, 2019, by the following roll call vote, to wit: 
 
 
AYES:   
 
NOES: 
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAIN: 
 
 
 
 

Gwen Berendsen 
Secretary Pro Tempore 

 
  

Item A-03 - 24 of 55



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PDEV19-033 
December 16, 2019 
Page 9 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT A: 
 

File No. PDEV19-033 
Departmental Conditions of Approval 

 
 

(Departmental conditions of approval to follow this page) 
 
 

Item A-03 - 25 of 55



Item A-03 - 26 of 55



Item A-03 - 27 of 55



Item A-03 - 28 of 55



Item A-03 - 29 of 55



Item A-03 - 30 of 55



Item A-03 - 31 of 55



Item A-03 - 32 of 55



Item A-03 - 33 of 55



Item A-03 - 34 of 55



Item A-03 - 35 of 55



Item A-03 - 36 of 55



Item A-03 - 37 of 55



Item A-03 - 38 of 55



Item A-03 - 39 of 55



Item A-03 - 40 of 55



Item A-03 - 41 of 55



Item A-03 - 42 of 55



Item A-03 - 43 of 55



Item A-03 - 44 of 55



Item A-03 - 45 of 55



Item A-03 - 46 of 55



Item A-03 - 47 of 55



Item A-03 - 48 of 55



Item A-03 - 49 of 55



Item A-03 - 50 of 55



Item A-03 - 51 of 55



Item A-03 - 52 of 55



Item A-03 - 53 of 55



Item A-03 - 54 of 55



Item A-03 - 55 of 55



Case Planner:  Lorena Mejia Hearing Body Date Decision Action 

Planning Director 
Approval: 

 DAB 2/21/18 Approve Recommend 
PC 2/27/18 Approve Final 

Submittal Date:  January 27, 2016 PC Rescind 12/16/19 Final 

FILE NO.: PMTT16-004 

SUBJECT: A request to rescind the approval of File No. PMTT16-004 (TT 19966), a 
Tentative Tract Map subdividing 111.10 acres of land into 480 numbered lots and 92 
lettered lots generally located at the southwest corner of Riverside Drive and Ontario 
Avenue, within the Residential Single Family district of Planning Areas 2, 3, 4, and 5 of 
the Armstrong Ranch Specific Plan; submitted by CVRC Ontario Investments, LLC.  

PROPERTY OWNER: F & J DE BOER Family Properties LP 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: That the Planning Commission rescind the approval of File 
No. PMTT16-004 (TT 19966), pursuant to the facts and reasons contained in the staff 
report and attached resolution. 

PROJECT SETTING: The project site is comprised of 111.10 acres of land located at 
southwest corner of Riverside Drive and Ontario Avenue, within the Residential Single 
Family District of Planning Areas 2, 3, 4 and 5 of the Armstrong Ranch Specific Plan, and 
is depicted in Figure 1: Project Location, below. The project site is bounded by Riverside 
Drive to the north, Chino Avenue to the 
south, Ontario Avenue to the east, and 
Vineyard Avenue to the west. The project 
site has historically been used for 
agricultural purposes, primarily for dairy 
and field crop farming. 

PROJECT ANALYSIS: 

[1] Background — The Armstrong
Ranch Specific Plan and Environmental 
Impact Report (EIR) were approved by 
the City Council on December 5, 2017, 
and November 21, 2017, respectively. 
The Armstrong Ranch Specific Plan 
established the land use designations, 
development standards, and design 
guidelines for 170.6 acres, which includes 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
STAFF REPORT
December 16, 2019 

Figure 1: Project Location 

Item B - 1 of 10



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PMTT16-004 
December 16, 2019 
 

Page 2 of 5 

the potential development of 891 dwelling units and an Elementary School. 
 
On February 21, 2018, the Development Advisory Board reviewed the subject application 
and recommended that the Planning Commission approve File No. PMTT16-004 (TT 
19966). On February 27, 2018, the Planning Commission reviewed the subject 
application and approved File No. PMTT16-004 (TT 19966), a Tentative Tract Map to 
subdivide 111.10 acres of land into 480 numbered lots and 92 lettered lots generally 
located at the southwest corner of Riverside Drive and Ontario Avenue (see Exhibit A—
Tentative Tract Map, attached).  
 
A Development Agreement (File No. PDA16-002) was processed concurrently with the 
Tentative Tract Map between the City of Ontario and CVRC Ontario Investments, which 
was approved by Ontario City Council on April 3, 2018 (Ordinance No. 3095). The 
Development Agreement included termination language that nullified the agreement 
should the applicant fail to acquire (purchase) the property by a specified date.  
 

[2] Rescission Request — On October 26, 2019, the applicant, CVRC Ontario 
Investments LLC, submitted a letter to the City of Ontario notifying the City that CVRC did 
not purchase the project site properties and is requesting for the termination of the 
Development Agreement (DA). With the termination of the DA, CVRC is requesting that 
the City refund the Public Services Fee and a Phase 2 Water Participation Fee that were 
paid and required by the DA. In order to process the applicant’s refund requests, the 
approved Tentative Tract Map, File No. PMTT16-004 (TT 19966), must be rescinded by 
the Planning Commission, which was the approving authority. The rescission request will 
have no effect on the approved Armstrong Ranch Specific Plan which will remain in place 
as the governing document for the project site. 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW: Based on the information presented rescinding the City’s 
prior approval of Tentative Tract Map File No. PMTT16-004 (TT 19966) is not a “project” 
within the meaning of the California Environmental Quality and its implementing state and 
local regulations, because it can be seen with certainty that such rescission will have no 
effect on the environment, as the action would not result in an activity that would cause 
either a direct physical change in the environment, or a reasonably foreseeable indirect 
physical change in the environment (Public Resources Code Section 21065). The 
rescission simply maintains the status quo of the subject property. 
  

Item B - 2 of 10



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PMTT16-004 
December 16, 2019 
 

Page 3 of 5 

Exhibit A—Tentative Tract Map 
 

 

Item B - 3 of 10



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PMTT16-004 
December 16, 2019 
 

Page 4 of 5 

 

 
 

Item B - 4 of 10



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PMTT16-004 
December 16, 2019 
 

Page 5 of 5 

 

 

 

Item B - 5 of 10



RESOLUTION NO. 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
ONTARIO, CALIFORNIA, RESCINDING ITS APPROVAL OF FILE NO. 
PMTT16-004 (TT 19966), A TENTATIVE TRACT MAP TO SUBDIVIDE 
111.10 ACRES OF LAND INTO 480 NUMBERED LOTS AND 92 
LETTERED LOTS WITHIN THE RESIDENTIAL SINGLE FAMILY 
DISTRICT OF PLANNING AREAS 2, 3, 4 AND 5 OF THE ARMSTRONG 
RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN, LOCATED ON THE SOUTHWEST CORNER 
OF RIVERSIDE DRIVE AND ONTARIO AVENUE, AND MAKING 
FINDINGS IN SUPPORT THEREOF—APNS: 0218-101-01, 0218-101-02, 
0218-101-07, 0218-101-08, 0218-102-10, AND 0218-102-11 

 
 

WHEREAS, CVRC Ontario Investments, LLC, (hereinafter referred to as 
“Applicant”) filed a request to rescind the approval of a Tentative Tract Map, File No. 
PMTT16-004, as described in the title of this Resolution (hereinafter referred to as 
“Application” or “Project”); and  

 
WHEREAS, the Application applies to 111.10 acres of land generally located 

southwest corner of Riverside Drive and Ontario Avenue, within the Planning Areas 2, 3, 
4 and 5 of the Armstrong Ranch Specific Plan, and is presently developed with 
unoccupied residential homes and ancillary farming and dairy buildings; and 
 

WHEREAS, the properties to the north of the Project site is within the LDR-5 (Low 
Density Residential) and the OS-R (Open Space-Recreational) zoning districts and are 
developed with Residential and Park land uses. The properties to the east are within 
Single-Family Residential Planning Areas 6a, 6b, and 7 of the Armstrong Ranch Specific 
Plan and are developed with residential and agricultural land uses. The property to the 
south is within the SP (AG) (Specific Plan/Agricultural Overlay) zoning district and is 
developed with a flood control basin and dairy/agricultural land uses. The property to the 
west is within the SP (AG) zoning district and is developed with dairy/agricultural land 
uses; and 

 
WHEREAS, on February 21, 2018, the Development Advisory Board reviewed the 

subject application and recommended that the Planning Commission approve File No. 
PMTT16-004 (TT 19966); and 

 
WHEREAS, on February 27, 2018, the Planning Commission reviewed the subject 

application and approved File No. PMTT16-004 (TT 19966); and  
 

WHEREAS, the Applicant also sought, and obtained approval of, a statutory 
Development Agreement (File No. PDA16-002), which was approved by the Ontario City 
Council on April 3, 2018, (Ordinance No. 3095) and recorded in the Official Records of 
the County of San Bernardino as Document No. 2018-0177562 (hereinafter referred to 

Item B - 6 of 10



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PMTT16-004 
December 16, 2019 
Page 2 
 
 
as “Development Agreement”). The Development Agreement included termination 
language that nullified the agreement should the applicant fail to acquire (purchase) the 
property by a specified date; and 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Development Agreement, the Applicant was obligated 
to pay to the City, a Public Services Funding Fee and a Phase 2 Water Participation, 
which were paid by Applicant to the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, on October 26, 2019, the applicant, CVRC Ontario Investments LLC, 
submitted a letter to the City of Ontario notifying the City that CVRC did not purchase the 
project site properties and requesting for the termination of the Development Agreement; 
and   
 

WHEREAS, the Applicant is requesting the City of Ontario refund Public Services 
and Phase 2 Water Participation Fees that were paid and required by the Development 
Agreement; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Applicant is requesting the approved Tentative Tract Map File No. 
PMTT16-004 (TT 19966) be rescinded by the Planning Commission; and 
 

WHEREAS, the rescission request will have no effect on the approved Armstrong 
Ranch Specific Plan which will remain in place as the governing document for the project 
site; and 
 

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings) 
prescribes the manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing 
procedures to be followed, and all such notifications and procedures have been 
completed; and 
 

WHEREAS, on December 16, 2019, the Planning Commission of the City of 
Ontario conducted a hearing to rescind the Project, and concluded said hearing on that 
date; and 
 

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Resolution have occurred. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND, DETERMINED, AND RESOLVED 
by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario, as follows: 
 

SECTION 1: Recitals. The above recitals are true and correct and such recitals 
are incorporated herein as if rewritten.   

SECTION 2: Environmental Review Not Required. Based on the information 
presented to the Planning Commission, and the specific findings set forth in Section 1, 

Item B - 7 of 10



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PMTT16-004 
December 16, 2019 
Page 3 
 
 
above, the Planning Commission finds that the adoption of this Resolution, rescinding the 
City’s prior approval of Tentative Tract Map File No. PMTT16-004 (TT 19966) is not a 
“project” within the meaning of the California Environmental Quality Act and its 
implementing state and local regulations because it can be seen with certainty that such 
rescission will have no effect on the environment, as the action would not result in an 
activity that would cause either a direct physical change in the environment, or a 
reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment (Public Resources 
Code Section 21065). The rescission simply maintains the status quo of the subject 
property. 

SECTION 3: Rescission of Approval of File No. PMTT16-004 (TT 19966). 
Pursuant to the terms of the Development Agreement, the Planning Commission hereby 
rescinds its approval of File No. PMTT 16-004, including Tentative Tract Nos. 19966-1, 
19966-2 19966-3 and 19966. Following the adoption of this Resolution, such Tentative 
Tract Maps shall be null and void. 

SECTION 4: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and 
hold harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, 
action or proceeding against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to 
attack, set aside, void, or annul this approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the 
applicant of any such claim, action, or proceeding, and the City of Ontario shall cooperate 
fully in the defense. 
 

SECTION 5: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that 
constitute the record of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located 
at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The 
custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of Ontario. 
 

SECTION 6: Certification to Adoption. The Secretary shall certify to the 
adoption of the Resolution. 
 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - -  
 

Item B - 8 of 10



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PMTT16-004 
December 16, 2019 
Page 4 
 
 

The Secretary Pro Tempore for the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario 
shall certify as to the adoption of this Resolution. 
 

I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly introduced, 
passed and adopted by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario at a special 
meeting thereof held on the 16th day of December 2019, and the foregoing is a full, true 
and correct copy of said Resolution, and has not been amended or repealed. 
 
 
 
 

Jim Willoughby 
Planning Commission Chairman 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 

Cathy Wahlstrom 
Planning Director and 
Secretary to the Planning Commission 

 

Item B - 9 of 10



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PMTT16-004 
December 16, 2019 
Page 5 
 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA   ) 
COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO ) 
CITY OF ONTARIO    ) 
 
 

I, Gwen Berendsen, Secretary Pro Tempore of the Planning Commission of the 
City of Ontario, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that foregoing Resolution No. ____ was duly 
passed and adopted by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario at their special 
meeting held on December 16, 2019, by the following roll call vote, to wit: 
 
 
 
AYES: 
 
NOES: 
 
ABSENT: 
 
ABSTAIN: 
 
 
 
 

Gwen Berendsen 
Secretary Pro Tempore 

 
 

Item B - 10 of 10



Case Planner:  Derrick Womble, 
 Administrative Officer Hearing Body Date Decision Action 

Planning Director 
Approval: 

 DAB N/A N/A N/A 
PC 12/16/2019 Recommend 

Submittal Date:  November 18, 2019 CC 01/21/2020 Final 

FILE NO.:   PDA15-003 

SUBJECT: A First Amendment to the Development Agreement (File No. PDA15-003) 
between the City of Ontario and BrookCal Ontario, LLC, modifying requirements for the 
commencement and completion of the Deferred Frontage Improvements associated with 
Tract Map 18937 (File No. PMTT17-002), located at the northeast corner of Archibald 
Avenue and Ontario Ranch Road, within Planning Area 7 of The Avenue Specific Plan 
(APNs: 0218-972-01, -02 through -81; 0218-973-01, -02 through -16; 0218-974-01, -02 
through -93; and 0218-975-01, -02 through -52).  Submitted by BrookCal Ontario, LLC. 
City Council action is required.   

PROPERTY OWNER: BrookCal Ontario, LLC 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: That the Planning Commission recommend City Council 
adoption of an ordinance approving the First Amendment to the Development Agreement 
(File No. PDA15-003), between the City of Ontario and BrookCal Ontario, LLC, pursuant 
to the facts and reasons contained in the staff report and attached resolution.   

PROJECT SETTING: The project site is 
comprised of 23.66 acres of land located 
at the northeast corner of Archibald 
Avenue and Ontario Ranch Road, within 
Planning Area 7 of The Avenue Specific 
Plan, and is depicted in Figure 1: Project 
Location. The project site slopes gently 
from north to south and is currently under 
construction with single family and multi-
family residential units. The property to 
the north of the project site is within 
Planning Area 6A of The Avenue Specific 
Plan and currently developed with single 
family homes.  The property to the south 
of the project site is within Planning Areas 
7 and 8 of the Grand Park Specific Plan 
and currently developed with 
agricultural/dairy uses. The property to 
the east of the project site is within 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
STAFF REPORT
December 16, 2019 

Figure 1: Project Location 

PROJECT SITE 

La Avenida Dr 

Ontario Ranch Rd 

A
rc

hi
ba

ld
 A

ve
 

N 

Item C - 1 of 31



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDA15-003 
December 16, 2019 
 

Page 2 of 8 

Planning Area 8A of The Avenue Specific Plan and is currently developed with single 
family residences.  The property to the west of the project site is within the Open Space 
and Elementary School districts of Planning Area 5 of The Avenue Specific Plan and is 
currently developed with agricultural uses. 
 
PROJECT ANALYSIS: 

 
[1] Background — The Avenue Specific Plan (“Specific Plan”) and Environmental 

Impact Report (EIR) were approved by the City Council on December 19, 2006. The 
Specific Plan establishes the land use designations, development standards, and design 
guidelines for 568 acres, which includes the potential development of 2,326 dwelling units 
and approximately 174,000 square feet of commercial.   
 
On December 5, 2017, the City Council approved a Development Agreement (File No. 
PDA15-003), for Tract Map 18937 to subdivide the 23.66 acre project into 48 single-family 
numbered lots, 7 multi-family numbered lots for Condominium Purposes, and 41 lettered 
lots for public streets, landscape neighborhood edges and common open space 
purposes. The project site would facilitate the development of up to 48 single family and 
217 multi-family residential units. On September 25, 2018, the Final Map for Tract 18937 
was recorded on the property.   
 
The mains points of the Development Agreement address Development Impact Fees 
(DIF), public service funding, Community Facilities District (CFD) for maintenance of 
public facilities, park/open space requirements, affordable housing in-lieu fees, school 
facilities requirements, and remain in full force and effect. State law and Section 2.5 of 
the Development Agreement provide that amendments may be made to the Agreement 
upon the mutual consent of both parties, using the same process and procedures as for 
the consideration and approval of the original Development Agreement.   

 
[2] Staff Analysis — The project site is directly adjacent to an existing property owned 

by Southern California Edison (SCE). Pursuant to the Development Agreement, BrookCal 
Ontario, LLC (the “Owner”) is responsible for the construction of street improvements, 
including neighborhood edge landscaping, sidewalks, trials and all other last lane 
improvements on Archibald Avenue and Ontario Ranch Road that are adjacent to the 
project site and adjacent to the Edison Substation (the “Deferred Frontage 
Improvements”).   
 
The Development Agreement provided the Owner with an option to defer the initiation 
and completion of the Deferred Frontage Improvements, contingent upon Owner’s 
deposit ($441,102.11) into an Escrow Account for the cost of the Deferred Frontage 
Improvements, which was deposited on March 20, 2019.     
 
Thus far, the Owner has been issued 149 building permits for Production Units, and under 
the provisions of the Development Agreement, prompts the commencement of the 
Deferred Frontage Improvements in order for the City to issue additional building permits 

Item C - 2 of 31



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDA15-003 
December 16, 2019 
 

Page 3 of 8 

for Production Units. However, the Owner has not acquired the necessary Rights-of-Way 
from SCE in order to commence construction of the Deferred Frontage Improvements.   
 
In considering the Owner is currently making their best reasonable efforts to seek 
approval from SCE and cannot commence construction of the Deferred Frontage 
Improvements until an approval is issued, the City has agreed to release additional 
building permits for Production Units. The release of additional building permits 
necessitates an amendment (the “First Amendment”) to the Development Agreement in 
order to reflect the modified terms for the commencement and completion of the Deferred 
Frontage Improvements. Key points of the First Amendment are as follows: 
 

• Owner shall commence construction of the Deferred Frontage Improvements 
either prior to Owner requesting the 250th Production Permit or by June 30, 2020, 
whichever occurs first.   
 

• Owner shall complete the construction of the Deferred Frontage Improvements 
within one hundred eighty (180) days following the commencement by Owner of 
the Deferred Frontage Improvements. 
 

• Owner shall provide periodic written progress reports to the City commencing thirty 
(30) days after the Owner initiates construction of the Deferred Frontage 
Improvements and each thirty (30) days thereafter.   
 

• If Owner is unable to acquire the necessary Rights-of-Way from SCE, prior to 
Owner requesting the 250th Production Permit, or by June 30, 2020, whichever 
occurs first, the City Manager or designee shall have the administrative authority 
to establish additional requirements of the Owner for the release of the remaining 
building permits for Production Units at his/her reasonable discretion.    
 

Staff finds that the First Amendment is consistent with State law, The Ontario Plan, and 
the City’s Development Agreement policies. As a result, staff is recommending approval 
of the First Amendment to the Development Agreement. If the Planning Commission finds 
the First Amendment is acceptable, a recommendation of approval to the City Council 
would be appropriate.   

 
COMPLIANCE WITH THE ONTARIO PLAN: The proposed First Amendment is 
consistent with the principles, goals and policies contained within the Vision, Governance, 
Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan 
(TOP). More specifically, the goals and policies of TOP that are furthered by the proposed 
First Amendment are as follows: 
 

[1] City Council Goals. 
 

 Invest in the Growth and Evolution of the City’s Economy 
 Operate in a Businesslike Manner 

Item C - 3 of 31



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDA15-003 
December 16, 2019 
 

Page 4 of 8 

 Pursue City’s Goals and Objectives by Working with Other Governmental 
Agencies 

 Focus Resources in Ontario’s Commercial and Residential Neighborhoods 
 Invest in the City’s Infrastructure (Water, Streets, Sewers, Parks, Storm 

Drains and Public Facilities) 
 Ensure the Development of a Well Planned, Balanced, and Self-

Sustaining Community in the New Model Colony 
 

[2] Vision. 
 

Distinctive Development: 
 

 Commercial and Residential Development 
 

 Development quality that is broadly recognized as distinctive and not 
exclusively tied to the general suburban character typical of much of Southern California. 
 

[3] Governance. 
 

Decision Making: 
 

 Goal G1: Sustained decision-making that consistently moves Ontario towards 
its Vision by using The Ontario Plan as a framework for assessing choices. 
 

 G1-2 Long-term Benefit. We require decisions to demonstrate and 
document how they add value to the community and support the Ontario Vision 
 

[4] Policy Plan (General Plan) 
 
Land Use Element: 

 
 LU2-6: Infrastructure Compatibility: We require infrastructure to be 

aesthetically pleasing and in context with the community character. 
 

Housing Element: 
 

 H2-5 Housing Design. We require architectural excellence through 
adherence to City design guidelines, thoughtful site planning, environmentally sustainable 
practices and other best practices. 
 

Community Economics Element: 
 

 CE2-1 Development Projects. We require new development and 
redevelopment to create unique, high-quality places that add value to the community. 
 

Item C - 4 of 31



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDA15-003 
December 16, 2019 
 

Page 5 of 8 

 CE2-2 Development Review. We require those proposing new development 
and redevelopment to demonstrate how their projects will create appropriately unique, 
functional and sustainable places that will compete well with their competition within the 
region. 
 

 CE2-4 Protection of Investment. We require that new development and 
redevelopment protect existing investment by providing architecture and urban design of 
equal or greater quality. 
 

 CE2-5 Private Maintenance. We require adequate maintenance, upkeep, 
and investment in private property because proper maintenance on private property 
protects property values. 
 

Safety Element: 
 

 Goal S1: Minimized risk of injury, loss of life, property damage and economic 
and social disruption caused by earthquake-induced and other geologic hazards. 
 

 S1-1 Implementation of Regulations and Standards. We require that all new 
habitable structures be designed in accordance with the most recent California Building 
Code adopted by the City, including provisions regarding lateral forces and grading. 
 

 
Community Design Element: 

 
 CD1-3 Neighborhood Improvement. We require viable existing residential 

and non-residential neighborhoods to be preserved, protected, and enhanced in 
accordance with our land use policies. 
 

 Goal CD2: A high level of design quality resulting in public spaces, 
streetscapes, and developments that are attractive, safe, functional and distinct. 
 

 CD2-1 Quality Architecture. We encourage all development projects to 
convey visual interest and character through: 
 

• Building volume, massing, and height to provide appropriate scale and 
proportion; 

• A true architectural style which is carried out in plan, section and 
elevation through all aspects of the building and site design and appropriate for its setting; 
and 

• Exterior building materials that are visually interesting, high quality, 
durable, and appropriate for the architectural style. 

 
 CD2-2 Neighborhood Design. We create distinct residential neighborhoods 

that are functional, have a sense of community, emphasize livability and social interaction, 

Item C - 5 of 31



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDA15-003 
December 16, 2019 
 

Page 6 of 8 

and are uniquely identifiable places through such elements as: 
 

• A pattern of smaller, walkable blocks that promote access, activity and 
safety; 

• Variable setbacks and parcel sizes to accommodate a diversity of 
housing types; 

• Traffic calming measures to slow traffic and promote walkability while 
maintaining acceptable fire protection and traffic flows; 

• Floor plans that encourage views onto the street and de-emphasize the 
visual and physical dominance of garages (introducing the front porch as the “outdoor 
living room”), as appropriate; and 

• Landscaped parkways, with sidewalks separated from the curb. 
 

 CD2-7 Sustainability. We collaborate with the development community to 
design and build neighborhoods, streetscapes, sites, outdoor spaces, landscaping and 
buildings to reduce energy demand through solar orientation, maximum use of natural 
daylight, passive solar and natural ventilation, building form, mechanical and structural 
systems, building materials and construction techniques. 
 

 CD2-8 Safe Design. We incorporate defensible space design into new and 
existing developments to ensure the maximum safe travel and visibility on pathways, 
corridors, and open space and at building entrances and parking areas by avoiding 
physically and visually isolated spaces, maintenance of visibility and accessibility, and 
use of lighting. 
 

 CD2-9 Landscape Design. We encourage durable landscaping materials 
and designs that enhance the aesthetics of structures, create and define public and 
private spaces, and provide shade and environmental benefits. 
 

 CD2-11 Entry Statements. We encourage the inclusion of amenities, 
signage and landscaping at the entry to neighborhoods, commercial centers, mixed use 
areas, industrial developments, and public places that reinforce them as uniquely 
identifiable places. 
 

 CD2-13 Entitlement Process. We work collaboratively with all stakeholders 
to ensure a high degree of certainty in the efficient review and timely processing of all 
development plans and permits. 
 

 Goal CD3: Vibrant urban environments that are organized around intense 
buildings, pedestrian and transit areas, public plazas, and linkages between and within 
developments that are conveniently located, visually appealing and safe during all hours. 
 

 CD3-2 Connectivity Between Streets, Sidewalks, Walkways and Plazas. 
We require landscaping and paving be used to optimize visual connectivity between 
streets, sidewalks, walkways and plazas for pedestrians. 

Item C - 6 of 31



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDA15-003 
December 16, 2019 
 

Page 7 of 8 

 
 CD3-5 Paving. We require sidewalks and road surfaces to be of a type and 

quality that contributes to the appearance and utility of streets and public spaces. 
 

 CD3-6 Landscaping. We utilize landscaping to enhance the aesthetics, 
functionality and sustainability of streetscapes, outdoor spaces and buildings. 
 

 Goal CD5: A sustained level of maintenance and improvement of properties, 
buildings and infrastructure that protects the property values and encourages additional 
public and private investments. 
 

 CD5-1 Maintenance of Buildings and Property. We require all public and 
privately owned buildings and property (including trails and easements) to be properly 
and consistently maintained. 
 

 CD5-2 Maintenance of Infrastructure. We require the continual 
maintenance of infrastructure. 
 
HOUSING ELEMENT COMPLIANCE: The project is consistent with the Housing 
Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan. The project 
site is one of the properties listed in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 
(Available Land by Planning Area) of the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix, 
and the proposed project is consistent with the  maximum number of dwelling units (287) 
and density (9.5 DU/AC) specified in the Available Land Inventory. 
 
AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLAN (ALUCP) COMPLIANCE: The project 
site is located within the Airport Influence Area of the Ontario International Airport and 
has been found to be consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within the Ontario 
International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW: The environmental impacts of this project were previously 
reviewed in conjunction with an amendment to The Avenue Specific Plan (File No. 
PSPA13-003), for which an addendum to the EIR (SCH#2005071109) was adopted by 
the City Council on June 17, 2014. This Application introduces no new significant 
environmental impacts. All previously adopted mitigation measures of the addendum are 
a condition of project approval and are incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

Item C - 7 of 31



Planning Commission Staff Report 
File No.: PDA15-003 
December 16, 2019 
 

Page 8 of 8 

 

Project Site 

Exhibit “A” 
The Avenue Specific Plan Land Use Map 

Item C - 8 of 31



RESOLUTION NO.  

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
ONTARIO, CALIFORNIA, RECOMMENDING THE CITY COUNCIL 
APPROVE THE FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE DEVELOPMENT 
AGREEMENT (FILE NO. PDA15-003), BETWEEN THE CITY OF 
ONTARIO AND BROOKCAL ONTARIO, LLC, MODIFYING 
REQUIREMENTS FOR THE COMMENCEMENT AND COMPLETION OF 
THE DEFERRED FRONTAGE IMPROVEMENTS ASSOCIATED WITH 
TRACT MAP 18937 (FILE NO. PMTT17-002), LOCATED AT THE 
NORTHEAST CORNER OF ARCHIBALD AVENUE AND ONTARIO 
RANCH ROAD, WITHIN PLANNING AREA 7 OF THE AVENUE SPECIFIC 
PLAN, AND MAKING FINDINGS IN SUPPORT THEREOF—APNS: 0218-
972-01, -02 THROUGH -81; 0218-973-01, -02 THROUGH -16; 0218-974-
01, -02 THROUGH -93; AND 0218-975-01, -02 THROUGH -52).

WHEREAS, BrookCal Ontario, LLC ("Applicant") has filed an Application for the 
approval of the First Amendment to the Development Agreement (File No. PDA15-003), 
as described in the title of this Resolution (hereinafter referred to as "Application" or 
"Project"); and 

WHEREAS, the Application applies to 23.66 acres of land generally located at the 
northeast corner of Archibald Avenue and Ontario Ranch Road, within Planning Area 7 
of The Avenue Specific Plan, and is presently under construction with single family and 
multi-family residential units; and  

WHEREAS, the property to the north of the project site is within Planning Area 6A 
of The Avenue Specific Plan and currently developed with single family residences. The 
property to the south of the project site is within Planning Areas 7 and 8 of the Grand Park 
Specific Plan and currently developed with agricultural/dairy uses. The property to the 
east of the project site is within Planning Area 8A of The Avenue Specific Plan and is 
currently developed with single family residences. The property to the west of the project 
site is within the Open Space and Elementary School districts of Planning Area 5 of The 
Avenue Specific Plan and is currently developed with agricultural uses; and 

WHEREAS, the Final Map for Tract 18937 was recorded in the official records of 
the San Bernardino County Recorder’s Office on September 25, 2018; and  

WHEREAS, the project site is directly adjacent to existing property owned by 
Southern California Edison (SCE) and the Applicant is responsible for the construction of 
street improvements, including neighborhood edge landscaping, sidewalks, trials and all 
other last lane improvements on Archibald Avenue and Ontario Ranch Road that are 
adjacent to the project site and adjacent to the Edison Substation (the “Deferred Frontage 
Improvements”); and 

Item C - 9 of 31



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PDA15-003 
December 16, 2019 
Page 2  
 
 

WHEREAS, on March 20, 2019, pursuant to Section 4.3.1.2 of the Development 
Agreement, the Applicant deferred the commencement and completion of the Deferred 
Frontage Improvements, and deposited $441,102.11 in an Escrow Account for the 
estimated cost of the improvements; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Applicant has been issued 149 building permits for Production 

Units, which prompts the commencement of the Deferred Frontage Improvements; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Applicant has not acquired the necessary Rights-of-Way from 

SCE in order to commence the construction of the Deferred Frontage Improvements; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Applicant has requested, and City has agreed, to perform an 

amendment (the “First Amendment”) to the Development Agreement, to allow the release 
of additional building permits for Production Units, contingent upon the Applicant’s 
compliance with the terms and provisions provided in the attached First Amendment; and   

 
WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental 

Quality Act — Public Resources Code Section 21000 et seq. — (hereinafter referred to 
as "CEQA") and an initial study has been prepared to determine possible environmental 
impacts; and 
 

WHEREAS, the environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in 
conjunction with an amendment to The Avenue Specific Plan (File No. PSPA13-003), for 
which an addendum to the EIR (SCH#2005071109) was adopted by the City Council on 
June 17, 2014, and this Application introduces no new significant environmental impacts; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the City's "Local Guidelines for the Implementation of the California 

Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)" provide for the use of a single environmental 
assessment in situations where the impacts of subsequent projects are adequately 
analyzed; and 
 

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the 
Planning Commission the responsibility and authority to review and make 
recommendation to the City Council on the subject Application; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario 
International Airport, which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, 
and Los Angeles Counties, and is subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies 
and criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
(hereinafter referred to as “ALUCP”), which applies only to jurisdictions within San 
Bernardino County, and addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight 
impacts of current and future airport activity; and 

 

Item C - 10 of 31



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PDA15-003 
December 16, 2019 
Page 3  
 
 

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings) 
prescribes the manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing 
procedures to be followed, and all such notifications and procedures have been 
completed; and 
 

WHEREAS, on December 16, 2019, the Planning Commission of the City of 
Ontario conducted a hearing to consider the Project and concluded said hearing on that 
date; and 

 
WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Resolution have occurred. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND, DETERMINED, AND RESOLVED 

by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario, as follows: 
 

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the 
recommending authority for the Project, the Planning Commission has reviewed and 
considered the information contained in the previous Certified EIR and supporting 
documentation. Based upon the facts and information contained in the previous Certified 
EIR and supporting documentation, the Planning Commission finds as follows: 

 
(1) The environmental impacts of this project were reviewed in conjunction with 

an addendum to The Avenue Specific Plan Environmental Impact Report, certified by the 
City of Ontario City Council on June 17, 2014, in conjunction with File No. PSPA13-003; 
and 
 

(2) The previous Certified EIR contains a complete and accurate reporting of 
the environmental impacts associated with the Project; and 

 
(3) The previous Certified EIR was completed in compliance with CEQA and 

the Guidelines promulgated thereunder; and 
 

(4) The previous Certified EIR reflects the independent judgment of the 
Planning Commission; and 
 

(5) The proposed project will introduce no new significant environmental 
impacts beyond those previously analyzed in the previous Certified EIR, and all mitigation 
measures previously adopted with the Certified EIR, are incorporated herein by this 
reference. 
 

SECTION 2: Subsequent or Supplemental Environmental Review Not 
Required. Based on the information presented to the Planning Commission, and the 
specific findings set forth in Section 1, above, the Planning Commission finds that the 
preparation of a subsequent or supplemental Certified EIR is not required for the Project, 
as the Project: 
 

Item C - 11 of 31



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PDA15-003 
December 16, 2019 
Page 4  
 
 

(1) Does not constitute substantial changes to the Certified EIR that will require 
major revisions to the Certified EIR due to the involvement of new significant 
environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of previously identified 
significant effects; and 

 
(2) Does not constitute substantial changes with respect to the circumstances 

under which the Certified EIR was prepared, that will require major revisions to the 
Certified EIR due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a 
substantial increase in the severity of the previously identified significant effects; and. 

 
(3) Does not contain new information of substantial importance that was not 

known and could not have been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the 
time the Certified EIR was certified/adopted, that shows any of the following: 

 
(a) The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in 

the Certified EIR; or 
 
(b) Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more 

severe than shown in the Certified EIR; or 
 
(c) Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be 

feasible would in fact be feasible and would substantially reduce one or more significant 
effects of the Project, but the City declined to adopt such measures; or  

 
(d) Mitigation measures or alternatives considerably different from those 

analyzed in the Certified EIR would substantially reduce one or more significant effects 
on the environment, but which the City declined to adopt. 
 

SECTION 3: Housing Element Compliance. Pursuant to the requirements of 
California Government Code Chapter 3, Article 10.6, commencing with Section 65580, as 
the recommending authority for the Project, the Planning Commission finds that based 
on the facts and information contained in the Application and supporting documentation, 
at the time of Project implementation, the project is consistent with the Housing Element 
of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan, as the project site is 
one of the properties listed in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 
(Available Land by Planning Area) of the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix, 
and the proposed project is consistent with the  maximum number of dwelling units (287) 
and density (9.5 DU/AC) specified in the Available Land Inventory.   
 

SECTION 4: Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
(“ALUCP”) Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code 
Section 21670 et seq.) requires that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared 
for all public use airports in the State; and requires that local land use plans and individual 
development proposals must be consistent with the policies set forth in the adopted 
Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, the City Council of the City of 

Item C - 12 of 31



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PDA15-003 
December 16, 2019 
Page 5  
 
 
Ontario approved and adopted the ALUCP, establishing the Airport Influence Area for 
Ontario International Airport (hereinafter referred to as “ONT”), which encompasses lands 
within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and limits future 
land uses and development within the Airport Influence Area, as they relate to noise, 
safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and future airport activity. As 
the recommending authority for the Project, the Planning Commission has reviewed and 
considered the facts and information contained in the Application and supporting 
documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors, including [1] Safety Criteria 
(ALUCP Table 2-2) and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2] Noise Criteria (ALUCP Table 
2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ALUCP Map 2-3), [3] Airspace protection Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification Zones (ALUCP Map 2-5). As a result, the 
PLANNING COMMISSION, therefore, finds and determines that the Project, when 
implemented in conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the 
policies and criteria set forth within the ALUCP. 
 

SECTION 5: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial 
evidence presented to the Planning Commission during the above-referenced hearing, 
and upon the specific findings set forth in Section 1 through 4, above, the Planning 
Commission hereby concludes as follows: 

 
a. The Application applies to 23.66 acres of land generally located 

at the northeast corner of Archibald Avenue and Ontario Ranch Road within Planning 
Area 7 of The Avenue Specific Plan; and 

 
b. The property to the north of the project site is within Planning Area 

6A of The Avenue Specific plan and currently developed with single family residences.  
The property to the south of the project site is within Planning Areas 7 and 8 of the Grand 
Park Specific Plan and currently developed with agricultural/dairy uses.  The property to 
the east of the project site is within Planning Area 8A of The Avenue Specific Plan and is 
currently developed with single family residences.  The property to the west of the project 
site is within the Open Space and Elementary School districts of Planning Area 5 of The 
Avenue Specific Plan and is currently developed with agricultural uses; and 

 
c. In acknowledgement that the Owner is currently making their best 

reasonable efforts to seek approval from SCE and cannot commence construction of the 
Deferred Frontage Improvements until an approval is granted from SCE, the City has 
agreed to issue additional building permits for Production Units; and 

 
d. The City’s release of additional building permits for Production 

Units, is contingent upon the Applicant’s compliance with the terms and provisions 
provided in the attached First Amendment; and 

 
e. If the Applicant is unable to receive approval from SCE pursuant 

to the thresholds provided in the attached First Amendment, the City Manager or 
designee, shall have the administrative authority to establish additional requirements of 

Item C - 13 of 31



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PDA15-003 
December 16, 2019 
Page 6  
 
 
the Applicant for the release of the remaining building permits for Production Units at 
his/her reasonable discretion; and 

 
f. This Application will not be materially injurious or detrimental to 

the adjacent properties and will not have a significant impact on the environmental or 
surrounding properties. The environmental impacts of this of this project were previously 
reviewed in conjunction with an amendment to The Avenue Specific Plan (File No. 
PSPA13-003), for which an addendum to the EIR (SCH#2005071109) was adopted by 
the City Council on June 17, 2014. This application introduces no new significant 
environmental impacts; and 

 
g. All adopted mitigation measures of the related EIR shall be a 

condition of project approval and are incorporated herein by reference; and 
 
h. The provisions of the Application are consistent with the goals, 

Policies, plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and the City Council 
Priorities components of The Ontario Plan, and any applicable specific plans; and 

 
i. The Application does not conflict with the Land Use Policies of The 

Ontario Plan Policy Plan (General Plan) and will provide for development, within the 
district, in a manner consistent with the Policy Plan and with related development; and 

 
j. This Application will promote the goals and objectives of the Land 

Use Element of the Policy Plan. 
 
SECTION 6: Planning Commission Action. Based upon the findings and 

conclusions set forth in Sections 1 through 5, above, the Planning Commission hereby 
RECOMMENDS THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVE the herein described Application, 
attached hereto as “Attachment B” and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 7: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and 
hold harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, 
action or proceeding against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to 
attack, set aside, void, or annul this approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the 
applicant of any such claim, action, or proceeding, and the City of Ontario shall cooperate 
fully in the defense. 
 

SECTION 8: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that 
constitute the record of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located 
at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The 
custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of Ontario. 
 

SECTION 9: Certification to Adoption. The Secretary shall certify to the 
adoption of the Resolution. 
 

Item C - 14 of 31



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PDA15-003 
December 16, 2019 
Page 7  
 
 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - -  
 

The Secretary Pro Tempore for the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario shall 
certify as to the adoption of this Resolution. 

 
I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly introduced, 

passed and adopted by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario at a special 
meeting thereof held on the 16th day of December 2019, and the foregoing is a full, true 
and correct copy of said Resolution, and has not been amended or repealed. 
 
 
 
 

Jim Willoughby 
Planning Commission Chairman 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 

Cathy Wahlstrom 
Planning Director and 
Secretary to the Planning Commission 

Item C - 15 of 31



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PDA15-003 
December 16, 2019 
Page 8  
 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 
COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO ) 
CITY OF ONTARIO ) 
 

I, Gwen Berendsen, Secretary Pro Tempore of the Planning Commission of the 
City of Ontario, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that foregoing Resolution No. PC19- , was 
duly passed and adopted by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario at their 
special meeting held on December 16, 2019, by the following roll call vote, to wit: 
 
 
AYES:   
 
NOES:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
 
 
 

Gwen Berendsen 
Secretary Pro Tempore 

 
  

Item C - 16 of 31



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PDA15-003 
December 16, 2019 
Page 9  
 
 

 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT A: 
 
 

Assessor Parcel Numbers (APN) 
 

Tract Map 18937 
 

(APN Listing to follow this page) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item C - 17 of 31



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PDA15-003 
December 16, 2019 
Page 10  
 
 0218-972-01  0218-972-47  0218-973-12  0218-974-42  0218-974-88  0218-975-41 
0218-972-02  0218-972-48  0218-973-13  0218-974-43  0218-974-89  0218-975-42 
0218-972-03  0218-972-49  0218-973-14  0218-974-44  0218-974-90  0218-975-43 
0218-972-04  0218-972-50  0218-973-15  0218-974-45  0218-974-91  0218-975-44 
0218-972-05  0218-972-51  0218-973-16  0218-974-46  0218-974-92  0218-975-45 
0218-972-06  0218-972-52  0218-974-01  0218-974-47  0218-974-93  0218-975-46 
0218-972-07  0218-972-53  0218-974-02  0218-974-48  0218-975-01  0218-975-47 
0218-972-08  0218-972-54  0218-974-03  0218-974-49  0218-975-02  0218-975-48 
0218-972-09  0218-972-55  0218-974-04  0218-974-50  0218-975-03  0218-975-49 
0218-972-10  0218-972-56  0218-974-05  0218-974-51  0218-975-04  0218-975-50 
0218-972-11  0218-972-57  0218-974-06  0218-974-52  0218-975-05  0218-975-51 
0218-972-12  0218-972-58  0218-974-07  0218-974-53  0218-975-06  0218-975-52 
0218-972-13  0218-972-59  0218-974-08  0218-974-54  0218-975-07   
0218-972-14  0218-972-60  0218-974-09  0218-974-55  0218-975-08   
0218-972-15  0218-972-61  0218-974-10  0218-974-56  0218-975-09   
0218-972-16  0218-972-62  0218-974-11  0218-974-57  0218-975-10   
0218-972-17  0218-972-63  0218-974-12  0218-974-58  0218-975-11   
0218-972-18  0218-972-64  0218-974-13  0218-974-59  0218-975-12   
0218-972-19  0218-972-65  0218-974-14  0218-974-60  0218-975-13   
0218-972-20  0218-972-66  0218-974-15  0218-974-61  0218-975-14   
0218-972-21  0218-972-67  0218-974-16  0218-974-62  0218-975-15   
0218-972-22  0218-972-68  0218-974-17  0218-974-63  0218-975-16   
0218-972-23  0218-972-69  0218-974-18  0218-974-64  0218-975-17   
0218-972-24  0218-972-70  0218-974-19  0218-974-65  0218-975-18   
0218-972-25  0218-972-71  0218-974-20  0218-974-66  0218-975-19   
0218-972-26  0218-972-72  0218-974-21  0218-974-67  0218-975-20   
0218-972-27  0218-972-73  0218-974-22  0218-974-68  0218-975-21   
0218-972-28  0218-972-74  0218-974-23  0218-974-69  0218-975-22   
0218-972-29  0218-972-75  0218-974-24  0218-974-70  0218-975-23   
0218-972-30  0218-972-76  0218-974-25  0218-974-71  0218-975-24   
0218-972-31  0218-972-77  0218-974-26  0218-974-72  0218-975-25   
0218-972-32  0218-972-78  0218-974-27  0218-974-73  0218-975-26   
0218-972-33  0218-972-79  0218-974-28  0218-974-74  0218-975-27   
0218-972-34  0218-972-80  0218-974-29  0218-974-75  0218-975-28   
0218-972-35  0218-972-81  0218-974-30  0218-974-76  0218-975-29   
0218-972-36  0218-973-01  0218-974-31  0218-974-77  0218-975-30   
0218-972-37  0218-973-02  0218-974-32  0218-974-78  0218-975-31   
0218-972-38  0218-973-03  0218-974-33  0218-974-79  0218-975-32   
0218-972-39  0218-973-04  0218-974-34  0218-974-80  0218-975-33   
0218-972-40  0218-973-05  0218-974-35  0218-974-81  0218-975-34   
0218-972-41  0218-973-06  0218-974-36  0218-974-82  0218-975-35   
0218-972-42  0218-973-07  0218-974-37  0218-974-83  0218-975-36   
0218-972-43  0218-973-08  0218-974-38  0218-974-84  0218-975-37   
0218-972-44  0218-973-09  0218-974-39  0218-974-85  0218-975-38   
0218-972-45  0218-973-10  0218-974-40  0218-974-86  0218-975-39   
0218-972-46  0218-973-11  0218-974-41  0218-974-87  0218-975-40   

Item C - 18 of 31



Planning Commission Resolution 
File No. PDA15-003 
December 16, 2019 
Page 11  
 
 

ATTACHMENT B: 
 
 

File No. PDA15-003 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 

By and Between 
 

City of Ontario 
a California municipal corporation 

 
and 

 
BrookCal Ontario, LLC 

a California limited liability company 
 
 

(First Amendment to follow this page) 
 
 

Item C - 19 of 31



RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND  
WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO:  
 
CITY OF ONTARIO 
CITY CLERK / RECORDS MANAGEMENT 
303 EAST “B” STREET 
ONTARIO, CA 91764-4196 
______________________________________________________________________  
Space above this line for Recorder’s Use   Exempt from Fees Per Gov. Code § 6301 

 
 
 

File No. PDA15-003 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 

By and Between 
 

City of Ontario 
a California municipal corporation 

 
and 

 
BrookCal Ontario, LLC 

a California limited liability company 
 
 
 

                                        , 2020 
 
 
 
 

San Bernardino County, California 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item C - 20 of 31



2 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT BY AND 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF ONTARIO AND BROOKCAL ONTARIO LLC 

FILE NO. PDA15-003 
 

This First Amendment to the Development Agreement (hereinafter the “First 
Amendment”) is entered into effective as of the _____ day of ________________ 20  by and 
among the City of Ontario, a California municipal corporation (hereinafter “CITY”), and BrookCal 
Ontario LLC, a California limited liability company (hereinafter “OWNER”). 

 
RECITALS 

 
WHEREAS, the CITY and OWNER have previously entered into a Development 

Agreement dated December 5, 2017 and recorded in San Bernardino County, California on 
December 20, 2017 as Instrument No. 2017-0542426 pursuant to Section 65864, et seq., of the 
Government Code, (hereinafter the “Development Agreement”); and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 3.7.2.2 of the Development Agreement, the  OWNER is 

required at OWNER’s sole cost and expense, to construct the neighborhood edge landscaping, 
sidewalks, trails, and all other last lane improvements on Archibald Avenue and Ontario Ranch 
Road, that are adjacent to the Property, and adjacent to existing property owned by Southern 
California Edison (“the Edison Substation”), and on Ontario Ranch Road and Archibald Avenue, 
known as the “Deferred Frontage Improvements”; and 

 
WHEREAS, OWNER and CITY agree and acknowledge that the Deferred Frontage 

Improvements adjacent to the Edison Substation, requires the review, approval, and permitting by 
Southern California Edison (“SCE”); and  

 
WHEREAS, OWNER has requested, and CITY has agreed, to modify certain specified 

requirements for the commencement and completion of the Deferred Frontage Improvements; and 
 
WHEREAS, on March 20, 2019, OWNER made the required deposit ($441,102.11) to the 

Escrow Account (File No. OSA-5864661) established by CITY and OWNER as required by 
Section 4.3.1.2 of the Development Agreement; and 

 
WHEREAS, as of November 1, 2019, OWNER and CITY acknowledge that SCE is 

pursuing (a) the approval from the California Public Utilities Commission ("CPUC") of the terms 
of a Purchase and Sale Agreement by and between OWNER and SCE for the conveyance by 
OWNER to SCE of certain real property adjacent to the Edison Substation and the grant to the 
City of an easement for right of way purposes over a portion of SCE's property and (b) the 
completion of certain improvements relating the Edison Substation so as to make the land and 
improvements available as necessary for OWNER to perform the Deferred Frontage 
Improvements. 

 
WHEREAS, OWNER is requesting that CITY issue an additional building permits for the 

construction of Model Units and Production Units prior to OWNER’s completion of the 
construction of the Deferred Frontage Improvements; and  

Item C - 21 of 31



3 
 

WHEREAS, CITY and OWNER have agreed that CITY may issue additional building 
permits for the construction of Model Units and Production Units conditioned upon OWNER’s 
agreement to commence the Deferred Frontage Improvements either prior to (1) the request of the 
250th residential building permit, (2) or by June 30, 2020, whichever occurs, over the property 
owned by SCE at the corner of Archibald Avenue and Ontario Ranch Road, and  complete the 
Deferred Frontage Improvements within one hundred eighty (180) days following the 
commencement of the Deferred Frontage Improvements. 

 
AGREEMENTS 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above recitals and of the mutual agreements 

hereinafter contained, the parties agree as follows: 

1. MODIFICATIONS TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT TO AMEND 
CERTAIN REQUIREMENTS FOR THE COMMENCEMENT AND 
COMPLETION OF THE DEFERRED FRONTAGE IMPROVEMENTS.   
 
The following shall replace Section 4.3.1.1 of the Development Agreement: 

Deferral of Construction of Improvements on Archibald Avenue and Ontario Ranch 
Road Adjacent to the Property and the SCE Substation on Ontario Ranch road and 
Archibald Avenue.  Notwithstanding the above, OWNER has requested and CITY has 
agreed that OWNER may defer the initiation and completion of the Deferred Frontage 
Improvements described in Section 3.7.2.2 of this Development Agreement and shown 
on Exhibit F and described as the street and other improvements on Archibald Avenue 
directly adjacent to the Project and the SCE Substation and the street and other 
improvements on Ontario Ranch Road adjacent to the Project and the SCE Substation. 
CITY's agreement to issue building permits for Production Units prior to OWNER's 
completion of the improvements described in Section 3.7.2 and as shown on Exhibit F 
is conditioned upon OWNER's compliance with the following conditions: 

 
a) Prior to, and as a condition precedent to, OWNER requesting and City granting 

of the first building permit for the Property, OWNER shall have completed the 
designs for the Deferred Frontage Improvements and also shall have completed 
the real property transaction to acquire the necessary Rights of Way for the 
Deferred Frontage Improvements, or OWNER shall have made the required 
deposit to the Escrow Account established by the CITY and OWNER as 
required by Section 4.3.1.2.   

 
b) Either prior to, and as a condition precedent to, (i) OWNER requesting and 

CITY granting the 250th residential building permit, including permits for the 
Model Units, (ii) or before June 30, 2020, whichever occurs first, OWNER shall 
commence the construction of the Deferred Frontage Improvements over that 
portion of the property owned by SCE as more particularly described on Exhibit 
"B" attached hereto and depicted on Exhibit "C" attached hereto.   

 

Item C - 22 of 31



4 
 

c) OWNER shall complete the construction of the Deferred Frontage 
Improvements within one hundred eighty (180) days following the 
commencement by OWNER of the Deferred Frontage Improvements. 

 
d) OWNER shall provide periodic written progress reports to CITY commencing 

thirty (30) days after the OWNER initiates construction of the Deferred 
Frontage Improvements and each thirty (30) days thereafter, regarding the 
progress of the construction of the Deferred Frontage Improvements until such 
Improvements are accepted by the CITY.   

  
e) Should OWNER not receive the required Rights of Way from SCE, prior to 

OWNER requesting the 250th residential building permit, or before June 30, 
2020, whichever occurs first, and the OWNER has made its best reasonable 
efforts to seek approval from SCE, the City Manager or designee shall have the 
administrative authority to establish additional requirements of the Owner for 
the release of the remaining building permits for Production Units at his/her 
reasonable discretion.  

 
f) Subject to the provisions of Section 8 of this Development Agreement, if 

OWNER does not comply with the conditions of this Section 4.3.1.1, OWNER 
shall be deemed to be in default of this Development Agreement and CITY shall 
be entitled to pursue all such remedies as available under the provisions of this 
Development Agreement.   

 
2. Integration.  All remaining Sections of the Development Agreement and the Exhibits 

thereto shall not be affected by this First Amendment. 
 

3. Additional Documents/Actions.  The City Manager is authorized to approve and 
execute any documents and to take any actions necessary to effectuate the purposes of 
this First Amendment to the Development Agreement. 

 
4. Defined Terms/Other Provisions.  Unless otherwise defined herein, capitalized terms 

contained in this First Amendment shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the 
Development Agreement.  Except as expressly amended herein, all provisions of the 
Development Agreement, as supplemented, restated and amended, shall remain. 

 
5. Integration.  This First Amendment reflects the complete understanding of the parties 

with respect to the subject matter hereof.  To the extent this First Amendment conflicts 
with the Development Agreement, this First Amendment supersedes such previous 
document.  In all other respects, the parties hereto re-affirm and ratify all other 
provisions of the Development Agreement as amended.   

 
6. Indemnification. OWNER hereby agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the 

CITY, its officials, officers, employees, agents, contractors and volunteers from and 
against any and all claims, suits or proceedings arising from or related to CITY’s 
entering into, or carrying out, this First Amendment.  This indemnification includes the 

Item C - 23 of 31



5 
 

payment of all penalties, fines, judgments, awards, decrees, attorney’s fees and related 
costs or expenses incurred by the CITY.   
 

 
 
 

{signature page to follow} 

Item C - 24 of 31



6 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this First Amendment as of 
the date below, the (“Effective Date”). 

 
SIGNATURE PAGE 

TO FIRST AMENDMENT TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 
 BROOKCAL ONTARIO LLC 

"OWNER" 
Brookcal Ontario LLC, a California limited 
liability company 
 
 
By:_______________________________ 
Name:     
Title: Authorized Representative  
Date: ___________________ 

  
"CITY" 
 
CITY OF ONTARIO 
 
 
By:_______________________________ 
     Scott Ochoa, City Manager 
 
Date: ___________________ 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
 City Clerk, Ontario 

  
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
COLE HUBER LLP 

 
 
__________________________________ 
City Attorney 

 
  

Item C - 25 of 31



7 
 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 

 

 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA    ) 
COUNTY OF _________________________)  

 

 

On _________________, 20_____, before me, _______________________________________,  
 Date           Insert Name and Title of the Officer 
 
personally appeared ____________________________________________________________ 
       Name(s) of Signer(s) 
_____________________________________________________________________________, 
who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person whose name(s) is/are 
subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same 
in his/her/their authorized capacity, and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the 
person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 

 
I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the 
laws of the State of California that the foregoing 
paragraph is true and correct. 

 
      WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
 
 
      Signature________________________________ 

       Signature of Notary Public 
 
Place Notary Seal Above 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the 
individual who signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the 
truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 

Item C - 26 of 31



8 
 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 

 

 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA    ) 
COUNTY OF _________________________)  

 

 

On _________________, 20_____, before me, _______________________________________,  
 Date           Insert Name and Title of the Officer 
 
personally appeared ____________________________________________________________ 
       Name(s) of Signer(s) 
_____________________________________________________________________________, 
who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person whose name(s) is/are 
subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same 
in his/her/their authorized capacity, and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the 
person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 

 
I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the 
laws of the State of California that the foregoing 
paragraph is true and correct. 

 
      WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
 
 
      Signature________________________________ 

       Signature of Notary Public 
 
Place Notary Seal Above 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the 
individual who signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the 
truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 

Item C - 27 of 31



9 
 

Exhibit “A” 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 
 
 
 

All of Tract Map No. 18937 as recorded in the Recorder’s Office of San Bernardino County, State 
of California, filed under Document No. 2018-0352453 on September 25, 2018 in Book 351 of 
Tract Map at Page(s) 18 – 26.   

 

Item C - 28 of 31



10 
 

Exhibit "B" 
 

CITY ROAD EASEMENT DESCRIPTION 

  

Item C - 29 of 31



11 
 

Exhibit "B" Continued  
 

CITY ROAD EASEMENT DESCRIPTION 

 
 

Item C - 30 of 31



12 
 

Exhibit "C" 
 

CITY ROAD EASEMENT DEPICTION 

 

Item C - 31 of 31





City of Ontario Planning Department 
Monthly Activity Report—Actions 
Month of November 2019 
 
 

12/4/2019 Page 1 of 7 

DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY BOARD MEETING November 4, 2019 
 

Meeting Cancelled 
 

 
ZONING ADMINISTRATOR MEETING November 4, 2019 
 

Meeting Cancelled 
 

 
CITY COUNCIL/HOUSING AUTHORITY MEETING November 5, 2019 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT REVIEW FOR FILE NO. 
PUD18-001: A Planned Unit Development to establish development standards and guidelines to 
facilitate the future development of a high density residential apartment project (30.3 dwelling 
units per acre) on 0.102-acre of land located at 418 East Transit Street, within the MU-1 
(Downtown Mixed Use) zoning district. The project is categorically exempt from the 
requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15332 
(Class 32, In-fill Development Projects) of the CEQA Guidelines. The proposed project is located 
within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport and was evaluated and found 
to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use 
Compatibility Plan; (APNs: 1049-067-04) submitted by Richard Southerland. The Planning 
Commission recommended approval of this item on September 24, 2019, with a vote of 6-0. 
Action: The City Council approved and waived further reading of an ordinance approving File 
No. PUD18-001. 

 
 
DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY BOARD MEETING November 18, 2019 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE NO. PDEV19-027: 
A Development Plan to construct one industrial building totaling 106,212 square feet on 5.35 
acres of land located at the southwest corner of San Antonio Avenue and State Street, within the 
IL (Light Industrial) zoning district. The environmental impacts of this project were previously 
analyzed with The Ontario Plan (File No. PGPA06-001) Environmental Impact Report (SCH# 
2008101140) that was certified by the City Council on January 27, 2010. This application 
introduces no new significant environmental impacts, and all previously adopted mitigation 
measures are a condition of project approval. The proposed project is located within the Airport 
Influence Area of Ontario International Airport and was evaluated and found to be consistent 
with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan; 
(APNs: 1049-301-05 & 1049-301-06) submitted by Comstock Realty Partners. 
Action: The Development Advisory Board approved the project subject to conditions. 



City of Ontario Planning Department 
Monthly Activity Report—Actions 
Month of November 2019 
 
 

12/4/2019 Page 2 of 7 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE NO. PDEV19-015: 
A Development Plan to construct one industrial building totaling 28,003 square feet on 1.21 acres 
of land located at 1413 West Holt Boulevard, within the IP (Industrial Park) zoning district. The 
project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, In-fill Development Projects) of the CEQA 
Guidelines. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario 
International Airport and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria 
of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan; (APNs: 1011-111-04) submitted 
by United Trust Realty Corporation. Planning Commission action is required. 
Action: The Development Advisory Board recommended the Planning Commission approve the 
project subject to conditions. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE NO. PDEV19-025: 
A Development Plan to construct a mixed-use project consisting of 925 multiple-family dwellings 
and 5,000 square feet of retail space on 22.39 acres of land located at the southeast corner of 
Vineyard Avenue and Inland Empire Boulevard, within the Planning Area 2 (Urban Commercial) 
land use district of the Meredith International Centre Specific Plan. Staff is recommending the 
adoption of an Addendum to Meredith International Centre Specific Plan Amendment 
Environmental Impact Report (SCH #. 2014051020) certified by City Council on April 7, 2015. This 
Application introduces no new significant environmental impacts. All previously adopted 
mitigation measures will be a condition of project approval. The proposed project is located 
within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport and was evaluated and found 
to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use 
Compatibility Plan; (APNs: 0110-311-52, 0110-311-53, 0110-311-54, and 0110-311-55) 
submitted by G.H. Palmer Associates. Planning Commission action is required. 
Action: The Development Advisory Board recommended the Planning Commission approve the 
project subject to conditions. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE NO. PDEV19-038: 
A Development Plan (File No. PDEV19-038) to construct a 2,430 square foot drive-thru restaurant 
(Starbucks Coffee) with a 480 square foot outdoor patio on 0.36 acres of land, located at the 
northwest corner of Euclid Avenue and E Street (110 West E Street and 511 N. Euclid Avenue)  
within the MU-1 (Downtown Mixed-Use) and EA (Euclid Avenue Overlay) zoning districts. The 
project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, In-fill Development Projects) of the CEQA 
Guidelines. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario 
International Airport and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria 
of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan; (APN: 1048-355-09 and 10) 
submitted by Hannibal Petrossi. Planning Commission action is required. 



City of Ontario Planning Department 
Monthly Activity Report—Actions 
Month of November 2019 
 
 

12/4/2019 Page 3 of 7 

Action: The Development Advisory Board recommended the Planning Commission approve the 
project subject to conditions. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE NO. PDEV19-039: 
A Development Plan to construct 67 conventional single-family homes on 11.24 acres of land 
located at the southeast corner of Eucalyptus Avenue and Parkplace Avenue, within the 
Conventional Medium Lot Residential district of Planning Area 20 of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan. 
The environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with the 
Subarea 29 Specific Plan, for which an Environmental Impact Report (SCH# 2004011009) was 
certified by the City Council on October 17, 2006. This application introduces no new significant 
environmental impacts, and all previously adopted mitigation measures are a condition of project 
approval. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario 
International Airport and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria 
of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan; (APN: 0218-014-25) submitted 
by Taylor Morrison of California, LLC. Planning Commission action is required. 
Action: The Development Advisory Board recommended the Planning Commission approve the 
project subject to conditions. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP REVIEW FOR FILE NO. PMTT19-
007 (PM 19970): A Tentative Parcel Map to subdivide 0.71 acres of land into three traditional 
single-family residential lots located at 1919 South Cypress Avenue, within the LDR-5 (Low 
Density Residential – 2.1 to 5.0 DU/Acre) zoning district. The project is categorically exempt from 
the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15315 
(Class 15, Minor Land Divisions) of the CEQA Guidelines. The proposed project is located within 
the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport and was evaluated and found to be 
consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use 
Compatibility Plan; (APN: 1050-331-24) submitted by Mark Raab. Planning Commission action 
is required. 
Action: The Development Advisory Board recommended the Planning Commission approve the 
project subject to conditions. 

 
 
ZONING ADMINISTRATOR MEETING November 18, 2019 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT REVIEW FOR FILE NO. 
PCUP19-012: A Conditional Use Permit to establish a 545-square foot Accessory Dwelling Unit as 
a second-floor addition to an existing detached garage on 0.147-acre of land located at 1218 
South Sultana Avenue, within the MDR-11 (Low-Medium Density Residential – 5.1 to 11.0 
DUs/Acre) zoning district. The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15303 (Class 3, New 
Construction or Conversion of Small Structures) of the CEQA Guidelines. The proposed project is 



City of Ontario Planning Department 
Monthly Activity Report—Actions 
Month of November 2019 
 
 

12/4/2019 Page 4 of 7 

located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, and was evaluated and 
found to be an existing land use and is not subject to the policies and criteria of the Ontario 
International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan; (APN: 1049-522-13) submitted by Powell and 
Associates, Inc. 
Action: The Zoning Administrator approved the project subject to conditions. 

 
 
CITY COUNCIL/HOUSING AUTHORITY MEETING November 19, 2019 
 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT WITH THE SWA GROUP FOR THE PREPARATION OF THE 
GREAT PARK MASTER PLAN: Authorize the City Manager to execute a Professional Service 
Agreement with the SWA Group of Laguna Beach for the preparation of the Ontario Great Park 
Master Plan. The Master Plan will guide the future phased improvements and development of 
the approximately 370-acre Great Park that will seek to provide a major amenity for Ontario as a 
key organizational element of land use development. The Great Park is envisioned to 
accommodate passive and recreational uses, cultural amenities, outdoor performance venues, 
gardens, ponds and waterways and similar elements. The Great Park runs east to west, 
approximately 3.8 miles in length, through the center portion of Ontario Ranch from Haven 
Avenue on the east to Campus Avenue on the west; submitted by the City of Ontario Planning 
Department. 
Action: The City Council authorize the City Manager to execute a seven-month Professional 
Services Agreement, not to exceed $402,500, with the SWA Group. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND TENTATIVE TRACT MAP TIME EXTENTIONS FOR FILE NOS. 
PMTT11-003 (TT 18026) and PMTT11-002 (TT 18027): A Time Extension of the expiration date of 
approval for: 1) Tentative Tract Map 18026 to subdivide 29 acres of land into 102 numbered lots 
and 10 letters within Planning Area 4 of the West Haven Specific Plan, located at the northwest 
corner of Haven Avenue and Chino Avenue; and 2) Tentative Tract Map 18027 to subdivide 29 
acres of land into 94 numbered lots and 5 lettered lots within Planning Area 8 of the West Haven 
Specific  Plan, located at the northwest corner of Haven Avenue and Schaefer Avenue.  The 
environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with West Haven 
Specific Plan (PSP03-006) EIR (SCH# 2004071095), certified by the City Council on July 17, 2007. 
This application introduces no new significant environmental impacts. (APNs: 0218-151-11 and 
0218-151-38) Submitted by Stratham West Haven. The Planning Commission recommended 
approval of this item on October 22, 2019, with a vote of 7-0. 
Action: The City Council approved resolutions granting a 5-year time extension for File Nos. 
PMTT11-003 (TT 18026) and PMTT11-002 (TT 18027). 

 
 
  



City of Ontario Planning Department 
Monthly Activity Report—Actions 
Month of November 2019 
 
 

12/4/2019 Page 5 of 7 

PLANNING/HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION MEETING November 26, 2019 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE NO. PDEV19-039: 
A Development Plan to construct 67 conventional single-family homes on 11.24 acres of land 
located at the southeast corner of Eucalyptus Avenue and Parkplace Avenue, within the 
Conventional Medium Lot Residential district of Planning Area 20 of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan. 
The environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with the 
Subarea 29 Specific Plan, for which an Environmental Impact Report (State Clearinghouse No. 
2004011009) was certified by the City Council on October 17, 2006. This application introduces 
no new significant environmental impacts, and all previously adopted mitigation measures are a 
condition of project approval. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area 
of Ontario International Airport and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies 
and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan; (APN: 0218-014-25) 
submitted by Taylor Morrison of California, LLC. 
Action: The Planning Commission approved the project subject to conditions. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE NO. PDEV19-015: 
A Development Plan to construct one industrial building totaling 28,003 square feet on 1.21 acres 
of land located at 1413 West Holt Boulevard, within the IP (Industrial Park) zoning district. The 
project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, In-fill Development Projects) of the CEQA 
Guidelines. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario 
International Airport and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria 
of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan; (APN: 1011-111-04) submitted 
by United Trust Realty Corporation. 
Action: The Planning Commission approved the project subject to conditions. 
 
CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS REVIEW FOR FILE NO. PHP19-014: A Certificate of 
Appropriateness for the adaptive reuse of two local historic landmark commercial buildings (Bank 
of Italy and Bumstead Bicycles) for a total of 8,460 square foot specialty restaurant(s) and bar, 
with a 4,200 square foot outdoor patio on 0.23 acres of land located at the northeast corner of B 
Street and Euclid Avenue, within the Downtown Civic Center Planned Unit Development zoning 
district. The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15331 (Historical Resource 
Restoration/Rehabilitation) of the CEQA Guidelines; (APN: 1048-552-22) submitted by 200 N. 
Euclid Avenue, LLC. 
Action: The Historic Preservation Commission approved the project subject to conditions. 
 
CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS REVIEW FOR FILE NO. PHP19-009: A Certificate of 
Appropriateness to construct a 2,430 square foot drive-thru restaurant (Starbucks Coffee), with 
a 480 square foot outdoor patio on 0.36 acres of land, located at the northwest corner of Euclid 



City of Ontario Planning Department 
Monthly Activity Report—Actions 
Month of November 2019 
 
 

12/4/2019 Page 6 of 7 

Avenue and E Street (110 West E. Street and 511 N. Euclid Avenue) within the MU-1 (Downtown 
Mixed-Use) and EA (Euclid Avenue Overlay) zoning districts. The project is categorically exempt 
from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 
15331 (Historical Resource Restoration/Rehabilitation) of the CEQA Guidelines. (APN: 1048-355-
09 and 10) submitted by Hannibal Petrossi. 
Action: The Historic Preservation Commission approved the project subject to conditions. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT, PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT, AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
REVIEW FOR FILE NOS. PUD19-001 AND PDEV19-038: A Planned Unit Development (File No. 
PUD19-001) to establish development standards, design guidelines and infrastructure 
requirement for property on 0.36 acres of land, located at the northwest corner of Euclid Avenue 
and E Street (110 West E Street and 511 North Euclid Avenue) within the MU-1 (Downtown 
Mixed-Use) and EA (Euclid Avenue Overlay) zoning districts, in conjunction with a Development 
Plan (File No. PDEV19-038) to construct a 2,430 square foot drive-thru restaurant (Starbucks 
Coffee), with a 480 square foot outdoor patio. The project is categorically exempt from the 
requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15332 
(Class 32, In-fill Development Projects) of the CEQA Guidelines. The proposed project is located 
within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport and was evaluated and found 
to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use 
Compatibility Plan; (APN: 1048-355-09 and 10) submitted by Hannibal Petrossi. City Council 
action is required for File No. PUD19-001. 
Action: The Planning Commission [1] approved a resolution recommending the City Council 
approve File No. PUD19-001; and [2] approved File no. PDEV19-038 subject to conditions. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP REVIEW FOR FILE NO. PMTT19-
007 (PM 19970): A Tentative Parcel Map to subdivide 0.71-acre of land into three traditional 
single-family residential lots located at 1919 South Cypress Avenue, within the LDR-5 (Low 
Density Residential – 2.1 to 5.0 DU/Acre) zoning district. The project is categorically exempt from 
the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15315 
(Class 15, Minor Land Divisions) of the CEQA Guidelines. The proposed project is located within 
the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport and was evaluated and found to be 
consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use 
Compatibility Plan; (APN: 1050-331-24) submitted by Mark Raab. 
Action: The Planning Commission approved the project subject to conditions. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND SPECIFIC PLAN AMEMEDMENT FOR FILE NO. PSPA19-002: 
An Amendment to the Meredith International Centre Specific Plan to establish a Mixed-Use 
Overlay district on 22.39 acres of land within a portion of Planning Area 2 (Urban Commercial) 
land use district, located at the southeast corner of Vineyard Avenue and Inland Empire 
Boulevard. Staff is recommending the adoption of an Addendum to Meredith International 
Centre Specific Plan Amendment Environmental Impact Report (State Clearinghouse No. 



City of Ontario Planning Department 
Monthly Activity Report—Actions 
Month of November 2019 
 
 

12/4/2019 Page 7 of 7 

2014051020) certified by City Council on April 7, 2015. This Application introduces no new 
significant environmental impacts and all previously adopted mitigation measures will be a 
condition of project approval. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area 
of Ontario International Airport and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies 
and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan; (APNs: 0110-311-
52, 0110-311-53, 0110-311-54, and 0110-311-55) submitted by G.H. Palmer Associates. City 
Council action is required. 
Action: The Planning Commission approved a resolution recommending the City Council 
approve the project. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE NO. PDEV19-025: 
A Development Plan to construct a mixed-use project consisting of 925 multiple-family dwellings 
and 5,000 square feet of retail space on 22.39 acres of land located at the southeast corner of 
Vineyard Avenue and Inland Empire Boulevard, within the Planning Area 2 (Urban Commercial) 
land use district of the Meredith International Centre Specific Plan. Staff is recommending the 
adoption of an Addendum to Meredith International Centre Specific Plan Amendment 
Environmental Impact Report (SCH #. 2014051020) certified by City Council on April 7, 2015. This 
Application introduces no new significant environmental impacts. All previously adopted 
mitigation measures will be a condition of project approval. The proposed project is located 
within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport and was evaluated and found 
to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use 
Compatibility Plan; (APNs: 0110-311-52, 0110-311-53, 0110-311-54, and 0110-311-55) 
submitted by G.H. Palmer Associates. 
Action: The Planning Commission approved the project subject to conditions. 

 



City of Ontario Planning Department 
Monthly Activity Report—New Applications 
Month of November 2019 
 
 

12/04/2019 Page 1 of 7 

PCUP19-027: Submitted by Juahandra Sogota 
A Conditional Use Permit to establish a 4,231-square foot Buddhist Meditation Hall on 0.51-
acre of land located at 123 East Locust Street, within the RE-2 (Residential Estate – 0 to 2.0 
DUs/Acre) zoning district (APN: 1050-261-17). Related File: PDEV19-065. Planning Commission 
action required. 
 
PCUP19-028: Submitted by Gurvinder Singh 
A Conditional Use Permit to establish a 273-room, 5-story dual hotel on 4.94 acres of land 
located at the southeast corner of Inland Empire Boulevard and Archibald Avenue, within the 
OH (Heavy Office) zoning district (APNs: 0210-191-29, 0210-191-30, 0210-191-31, 0210-191-
32). Related File: PDEV19-067. City Council action required. 
 
PDCA19-003: Submitted by City of Ontario Planning Department 
An Urgency Ordinance addressing changes in State law affecting accessory dwelling units 
(ADUs), which go into effect on 1/1/2020. City Council action required. 
 
PDEV19-062: Submitted by Newcastle Partners Inc 
A Development Plan to construct one industrial building totaling 61,130 square feet on 3.12 acres 
of land located at the southeast corner of Jurupa Street and Hudson Avenue, within the Light 
Industrial zoning district of the California Commerce Center Specific Plan (APNs: 0238-121-30 and 
0238-121-31). Development Advisory Board action required. 
 
PDEV19-063: Submitted by United Trust Realty Corporation 
A Development Plan to construct two industrial buildings totaling 67,010 square feet on 2.78 
acres of land located at 1948 South Bon View Avenue, within the IL (Light Industrial) zoning 
district (APN: 1050-441-05). Related File: PMTT19-021. Planning Commission action required. 
 
PDEV19-064: Submitted by The New Home Company Southern California, LLC 
A Development Plan to construct 540 single-family homes on approximately 58 acres of land 
located at the northwest corner of Merrill Avenue and Archibald Avenue, within Planning Area 2 
(PA-2) of the Parkside Specific Plan (APNs: 0218-231-12, 0218-231-14, 0218-231-17, 0218-231-
18, 0218-231-19, 0218-231-20, 0218-231-21, 0218-231-22, 0218-231-28, 0218-231-29, 0218-
231-30, 0218-231-33, and 0218-231-35). Related File: TT 18048. Planning Commission action 
required. 
 
PDEV19-065: Submitted by Jauhandra Sogata 
A Development Plan to construct a 2,812-square foot addition to an existing 1,419-square foot 
single family home and to convert the home to a Buddhist meditation hall on 0.51-acre of land 
located at 123 East Locust Street, within the RE-2 (Residential Estate – 0 to 2.0 DUs/Acre) zoning 
district (APN: 1050-261-17). Related File: PCUP19-027. Planning Commission action required. 



City of Ontario Planning Department 
Monthly Activity Report—New Applications 
Month of November 2019 
 
 

12/04/2019 Page 2 of 7 

PDEV19-066: Submitted by Friends of Family Health Care 
A Development Plan to construct an 8,600-square foot medical office building on 0.918-acre of 
land generally located at the southeast corner of Begonia Avenue and Fourth Street, at 1129 
West Fourth Street, within the CC (Community Commercial) zoning district (APN: 1010-132-05). 
Development Advisory Board action required. 
 
PDEV19-067: Submitted by Gurvinder Singh 
A Development Plan to construct a 273-room, 5-story dual hotel on 4.94 acres of land located 
at the southeast corner of Inland Empire Boulevard and Archibald Avenue, within the OH (Heavy 
Office) zoning district (APNs: 0210-191-29, 0210-191-30, 0210-191-31, and 0210-191-32). 
Related File: PCUP19-028. Planning Commission action required. 
 
PDEV19-068: Submitted by AT&T (Crown Castle- Agent for AT&T) 
A Development Plan to modify an existing monopine wireless facility (AT&T Wireless) that 
qualifies as an Eligible Facilities Request, to install a new row of antennas at a height of 78 feet, 
measured to the top of panel, and to increase the area of the ground mounted enclosure to 
facilitate additional new equipment on 0.48-acre of land located at 1278 North Hellman 
Avenue, within the IL (Light Industrial) zoning district (APN: 0210-062-58). Related Files: 
PDEV14-035 and PCUP14-016. Zoning Administrator action required. 
 
PDIF19-008: Submitted by SC Ontario Development Company, LLC 
A Development Impact Fee Credit and Reimbursement Agreement with SC Ontario 
Development Company, LLC, associated with the development of Tentative Tract Map 20316 
(File No. PMTT19-020), located at the southwest corner of Archibald Avenue and Ontario Ranch 
Road, within the Parkside Specific Plan (APNs: 0218-231-06, 0218-231-08, 0218-231-09, 0218-
231-10, 0218-231-11, 0218-231-12, 0218-231-13, 0218-231-14, 0218-231-15, 0218-231-16, 
0218-231-17, 0218-231-18, 0218-231-19, 0218-231-20, 0218-231-21, 0218-231-22, 0218-231-
28, 0218-231-30, 0218-231-31, 0218-231-39, 0218-221-09, and 0218-221-10). City Council 
action required. 
 
PGPA19-008: Submitted by Ontario Schafer Holdings, LLC 
An Amendment to the Land Use Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The 
Ontario Plan, changing the land use designation on 10.49 acres of land located at the northeast 
corner of La Avenida Drive and Manitoba Place, from School to Medium Density Residential and 
modifying Exhibit LU-03 (Future Buildout Table) to be consistent with the proposed land use 
designation change (APN: 218-652-27). Related Files: PMTT19-015 and PSPA19-011. Planning 
Commission action required. 
 
PGPA19-009: Submitted by Blaise D'Angelo 
An Amendment to the Land Use Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The 
Ontario Plan, changing the land use designation on 0.214-acre of vacant land abutting property 



City of Ontario Planning Department 
Monthly Activity Report—New Applications 
Month of November 2019 
 
 

12/04/2019 Page 3 of 7 

addressed as 1526 South Euclid Avenue, from Rural Residential to Low Medium Density 
Residential, and modifying Exhibit LU-03 (Future Buildout Table) to be consistent with the 
proposed land use designation change (APN: 1050-061-16). Planning Commission action 
required. 
 
PHP-19-017: Submitted by Salvador Cardenas 
A Certificate of Appropriateness for various improvements to a property located at 562 West 
Ralston Avenue, within the LDR-5 (Low Density Residential - 2.1 to 5.0 DU/Acre) zoning district 
(APN: 1049-573-28). Historic Preservation Commission action required. 
 
PHP-19-018: Submitted by Ofelia Pankratz 
A Certificate of Appropriateness to reroof the existing residence located at 542 East Rosewood 
Court, within the LDR-5 (Low Density Residential - 2.1 to 5.0 DU/Acre) zoning district (APN: 
1048-092-08). Historic Preservation Commission action required. 
 
PMTT19-021: Submitted by United Trust Realty Corporation 
A Parcel Map to subdivide 2.78 acres of land into two parcels, located at 1948 South Bon View 
Avenue, within the IL (Light Industrial) zoning district (APN: 1050-441-05). Related File: PDEV19-
063. Planning Commission action required. 
 
PSGN19-118: Submitted by Signs of Success 
A Sign Plan for a temporary 20-square foot (2 FT x 10 FT) banner sign for YAMAMOTO 
OPTOMETRY, located at 417 North Euclid Avenue. Effective 11/6/2019 through 12/21/2019. 
Staff action required. 
 
PSGN19-119: Submitted by Toyota Arena 
A Sign Plan for the completion of a Freeway Marquee Sign update, changing out CBBA to Toyota 
Area, located at 4000 Ontario Mills Parkway, within the Ontario Center Specific Plan (APN: 0210-
205-01). Staff action required. 
 
PSGN19-120: Submitted by 88 Sign 
A Sign Plan for the installation of one wall sign for Q PET GROOMING, located at 2665 East 
Riverside Drive, Unit A, within the CN (Neighborhood Commercial) zoning district (APN: 1083-
061-07). Staff action required. 
 
PSGN19-121: Submitted by Martinez Electric 
A Sign Plan for the installation of one wall sign for ASAP STAFFING, located at 2207 South Euclid 
Avenue, within the CC (Community Commercial) zoning district (APN: 1051-081-01). Staff action 
required. 
 



City of Ontario Planning Department 
Monthly Activity Report—New Applications 
Month of November 2019 
 
 

12/04/2019 Page 4 of 7 

PSGN19-122: Submitted by Machan Sign Co 
A Sign Plan for the installation of two wall signs for THE LOVE STORE, located at 4421 East 
Ontario Mills Parkway, within the Commercial Office land use district of the Ontario Mills 
Specific Plan (APN: 0238-014-10). Staff action required. 
 
PSGN19-123: Submitted by William Sign Co 
A Sign Plan for the relocation of an existing previously approved freeway sign for the 
CENTRELAKE SPECIFIC PLAN, located at 3330 East Centrelake Boulevard (APN: 0210-551-14). The 
request is being made due to a freeway widening project. Staff action required. 
 
PSGN19-124: Submitted by Alcon Signs 
A Sign Plan for the installation of two illuminated wall signs for HANASAB INSURANCE, located 
at 3333 East Concours Street, Suite 5100, within the Garden Commercial land use district of the 
Ontario Center Specific Plan (APN: 0210-521-05). Staff action required. 
 
PSGP19-005: Submitted by Prime A Investments - Ontario, LLC 
A Sign Program to establish sign regulations for a proposed development located at the 
southeast corner of Haven Avenue and Guasti Road (3520 through 3580 East Guasti Road) 
within the Mixed Use land use district of the Ontario Gateway Specific Plan (APN: 0210-212-57). 
City Council action required. 
 
PSPA19-011: Submitted by Ontario Schafer Holdings, LLC 
An Amendment to the Avenue Specific Plan, changing the land use designation on 10.49 acres 
of land from School to Medium Density Residential, located at the northeast corner of La 
Avenida Drive and Manitoba Place (APN: 0218-652-27). Related Files: PMTT19-015 and PGPA19-
008. City Council action required. 
 
PTUP19-073: Submitted by Smart and Final 
A Temporary Use Permit for a special event hosted by Smart and Final, to include KOST 103.5 
radio station and prize giveaway within a 10-foot x 10-foot EZ up, located at 1337 Fourth Street. 
Event to be held on 11/19/2019, 3:00PM to 5:00PM. Staff action required. 
 
PTUP19-074: Submitted by American Legion Post 112 
A Temporary Use Permit for a Holiday Toy Run hosted by American Legion Post 112, located at 
310 West Emporia Street. Event to be held on 12/01/2019. Staff action required. 
 
PTUP19-075: Submitted by Hooters of Ontario 
A Temporary Use Permit for a Car Show & Toy Drive hosted by Hooters, located at 725 North 
Milliken Avenue. Event to be held on 12/8/2019, from 8:00AM to 6:00PM. Related File: PTUP18-
086. Staff action required. 



City of Ontario Planning Department 
Monthly Activity Report—New Applications 
Month of November 2019 
 
 

12/04/2019 Page 5 of 7 

 
PTUP19-076: Submitted by The Office Bar 
A Temporary Use Permit for an outdoor event (ugly Christmas sweater party) at 2425 South 
Grove Avenue, hosted by The Office Bar. Event to be held on 11/27/2019, from 1:00PM to 
1:00AM. Staff action required. 
 
PTUP19-077: Submitted by Bob's Discount Furniture 
A Temporary Use Permit for a Black Friday tent sales event for Bob's Discount Furniture, located 
at 4195 East Inland Empire Boulevard (APN: 0210-501-32). Event to be held on 11/29/2019 to 
12/2/2019. Staff action required. 
 
PTUP19-078: Submitted by Prayer + Praise Ministries 
A Temporary Use Permit to conduct an annual Thanksgiving Dinner hosted by Prayer + Praise 
Ministries, located at 130 West Phillips Street. Event to be held on 11/23/2019, 11:30AM to 
3:30PM. Staff action required. 
 
PTUP19-079: Submitted by Muslim American Society 
A Temporary Use Permit for an event hosted by the Muslim American Society, located at Parking 
Lot A of the Ontario Convention Center. Outdoor activities include a carnival for children, 
which consists of Euro Bungee, Pirate Revenge Ride, Zip Line Ride, Mechanical Surfboard, 
Titanic Slide. The event will be held on 11/29/2019 through 11/30/2019, 10:00AM to 8:00PM. 
Staff action required. 
 
PTUP19-080: Submitted by M-K Associates 
A Temporary Use Permit for a two-year extension of previously approved Temporary Use Permit 
(PTUP17-080) for temporary vehicle storage (excluding tractor/trailer storage) on 
approximately 20 acres of land located on the north side of Guasti Road, between the 
Cucamonga Channel and Archibald Avenue (APN: 0110-322-08, 0110-322-21, 0110-322-29, 
0110-322-30, and portions of 0110-322-22 and 0110-322-31). Permit effective 1/25/2020 
through 1/25/2022. Staff action required. 
 
PTUP19-081: Submitted by Christopher Allen 
A Temporary Use Permit to conduct car show and toy drive event within the parking lot adjacent 
to the Pep Boys, located at 2415 South Vineyard Avenue. Event to be held on 12/7/2019, 
10:00AM to 4:00PM. Staff action required. 
PTUP19-082: Submitted by Lowes 
A Temporary Use Permit for Lowes Christmas tree sales lot, located at 2390 South Grove 
Avenue, within the CC (Community Commercial) zoning district. Event to be held on 11/25/2019 
through 12/25/2019. Staff action required. 
 



City of Ontario Planning Department 
Monthly Activity Report—New Applications 
Month of November 2019 
 
 

12/04/2019 Page 6 of 7 

PTUP19-083: Submitted by Knights of Columbus Council #13619 
A Temporary Use Permit for a Mardi Gras event within an existing church located at 2713 South 
Grove Avenue. Event to be held on 2/22/2020, 6:00PM to 12:00AM. Staff action required. 
 
PVER19-066: Submitted by Zoning Info Inc 
A Zoning Verification for property located at 1990 South Vintage Avenue, within the IH (Heavy 
Industrial) zoning district (APN: 0238-161-51). Staff action required. 
 
PVER19-067: Submitted by PZR 
A Zoning Verification for property located at 630 South Mountain Avenue, within the IL (Light 
Industrial) zoning district (APN: 1011-181-10). Staff action required. 
 
PVER19-068: Submitted by PZR 
A Zoning Verification for property located at 112 South Mountain Avenue, within the IL (Light 
Industrial) zoning district (APN: 1011-131-18). Staff action required. 
 
PVER19-069: Submitted by PZR 
A Zoning Verification for property located at 1291 South Vintage Avenue, within the IH (Heavy 
Industrial) zoning district (APN: 0238-101-51). Staff action required. 
 
PVER19-070: Submitted by Stutzman, Bromberg, Esserman and Plifka, PC 
A Zoning Verification for property located at 720, 740, 760 and 780 South Milliken Avenue, 
within the Light Industrial land use district of the California Commerce Center Specific Plan 
(APNs: 0211-222-35 and 0221-222-36). Staff action required. 
 
PVER19-071: Submitted by PZR 
A Zoning Verification for property located at 1930 South Rochester Avenue, within the IG 
(General Industrial) zoning district (APN: 0238-152-31). Staff action required. 
 
PVER19-072: Submitted by PZR 
A Zoning Verification for property located at 1920 South Rochester Ave within the IG (General 
Industrial) zoning district. (APN: 0238-152-31). Staff action required. 
 
PVER19-073: Submitted by PZR 
A Zoning Verification for property located at 2260 South Archibald Avenue within the Business 
Park land use district of the Archibald Center Specific Plan (APN: 1083-011-16). Staff action 
required. 
 



City of Ontario Planning Department 
Monthly Activity Report—New Applications 
Month of November 2019 
 
 

12/04/2019 Page 7 of 7 

PVER19-074: Submitted by PZR 
A Zoning Verification for property located at 2850 East Philadelphia Street within the Business 
Park land use district of the Archibald Center Specific Plan (APN: 1083-011-16). Staff action 
required. 
 
PZC-19-003: Submitted by Blaise D'Angelo 
A Zone Change, amending the zoning designation on 0.214 acres of land from AR-2 
(Residential–Agricultural – 0 to 2.0 DU/Acre) zoning district to MDR-11 (Medium Density 
Residential – 5.1 to 11.0 DU/Acre) zoning district, located at 1528 South Euclid Avenue (APN: 
1050-061-16). Related File: General Plan Amendment PGPA19-009. City Council action 
required. 


	20191216 PC Agenda
	MATTERS FROM THE PLANNING/HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION

	20191216 Item A-01 PC Minutes
	REGULAR MEETING: City Hall, 303 East B Street
	Called to order by Chairman Willoughby at 6:30 PM
	COMMISSIONERS
	Present: Chairman Willoughby, Vice-Chairman DeDiemar, Gage, Gregorek, Reyes and Ricci
	Absent: Downs
	OTHERS PRESENT: Planning Director Wahlstrom, Assistant Planning Director Zeledon, City Attorney Graham, Senior Planner D. Ayala, Senior Planner Mejia, Associate Planner Aguilo, Associate Planner Chen, Associate Planner Vaughn, Principal Engineer Lirle...
	It was moved by Gregorek, seconded by Reyes, to approve the Consent Calendar including the Minutes of October 22, 2019, as written, and the Development Plans, File Nos., PDEV19-039 and PDEV19-015, subject to conditions of approval. The motion was carr...
	PUBLIC TESTIMONY
	Mr. Marco Brambilla, architect on the project stated he was glad to be at this point. Mr. Alex Baroian, the owner, appeared and spoke.
	Mr. Gage asked Mr. Baroian if he agreed to the Conditions of Approval.
	Mr. Brambilla stated yes.
	Mr. Gage wanted clarification if the iconic clock was being replaced.
	Mr. Baroian stated it is in the works to sourcing a replica and hoping to get it done.
	Mr. Gage wanted clarification that this project would include three different restaurants.
	Mr. Baroian stated yes the three restaurants they are envisioning would be a southern barbecue with an outside barbecue pit and eating area, a coffee shop, not a chain but more of a mom and pop, with maybe a pizza oven, where you could walk up from th...
	Mr. Gage wanted to know if the applicant has experience in renovating historic buildings like this.
	Mr. Baroian stated yes, they have decades of experience with historic buildings, and their most recent project in Glendale, the Huntley Evans building, for adaptive reuse after the Northridge earthquake for hospitality, banquet facilities, and offices...
	Mr. Brambilla stated this team operates and has done similar projects and is sensitive to the preservation of the architectural texture. He has a PHD in Historic preservation and has toured all over the world and has done even older renovation project...
	Mr. Baroian stated that they are unique, because they are not only the real estate developers, but they help with operating the businesses, which allows them to custom build the buildings to bring them back to life and then operate them and work with ...
	Mr. Gage wanted to know if the vault in the bank would be reused.
	Mr. Baroian stated there are two vaults, one in the basement, which is able to be reused, but the one on the first floor became a structural issue.
	Mr. Reyes wanted to clarify that the applicant would be working with staff regarding the finishes and the final design and materials to make sure they are historically compatible, especially the canopy.
	Mr. Baroian stated he is excited to work with the city to make sure what they do will be harmonious and will last another 100 years, and everyone will take pride in.
	Mr. Brambilla stated the finishes would be the least intrusive materials as possible and the being that the area was developed recently with an architectural component, they want to make sure it is compatible, and they aren’t introducing a different s...
	Ms. DeDiemar wanted to know if this is their first project in Ontario and why did they pick this building in Ontario.
	Mr. Baroian stated yes, it is there first project in Ontario and the building caught their attention. He stated they had worked with Mr. Ochoa in Glendale and he had recommended they take a look at the building.
	Ms. DeDiemar wanted clarity that they would be operating all three of the businesses when they were completed.
	Mr. Baroian stated yes that is the plan, unless someone comes in to lease it out that would do as good a job or better than them.
	Mr. Ricci wanted clarity regarding the rooftop dining area, and do they have any contingencies regarding weather issues.
	Mr. Brambilla stated that the existing parapet is high enough that when you are sitting on the rooftop you would already be protected from the elements, however there would be misters and outdoor air conditioning systems and gas heaters to help with t...
	Mr. Gregorek wanted clarification regarding the cigar lounge.
	Mr. Baroian stated it is still on the plans.
	Mr. Gregorek wanted clarity if that business would have the same owner as the steak house.
	Mr. Baroian stated it would depend on the regulations surrounding the cigar lounge and will address the issues if it needs to be a separate entity.
	Mr. Willoughby stated he was excited about this project and the Bank of Italy being used.
	As there was no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Willoughby closed the public testimony
	It was moved by Gregorek, seconded by Gage, to adopt a resolution to approve the Certificate of Appropriateness, File No., PHP19-014, subject to conditions of approval. Roll call vote: AYES, DeDiemar, Gage, Gregorek, Reyes, Ricci, and Willoughby; NOES...
	PUBLIC TESTIMONY
	Mr. Hannibal Petrossi appeared and thanked Mr. Zeledon for all his help and guidance in the design.
	Mr. Reyes wanted to know if the patio is a solid roof patio.
	Mr. Petrossi stated yes, it is.
	Mr. Willoughby wanted to know if it would be aluminum.
	Mr. Petrossi stated yes it will be.
	Mr. Gage wanted clarity regarding the designated MOP parking.
	Mr. Petrossi stated MOP parking was for mobile order pickup, but it was taken out and will just be normal parking stalls.
	Mr. Gage wanted clarity that these stalls were not exclusive for MOP.
	Mr. Petrossi stated that was correct.
	Mr. Zeledon explained that MOP would be where you place an order from the app, then park and pick it up, not delivered to them.
	Mr. Gage asked Mr. Petrossi if he agreed to the conditions of approval.
	Mr. Petrossi stated yes.
	Mr. Willoughby stated it looked like the newer design that they just used in Palm Springs.
	As there was no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Willoughby closed the public testimony
	It was moved by Gage, seconded by Ricci, to adopt a resolution to approve the Certificate of Appropriateness, File No., PHP19-009, subject to conditions of approval. Roll call vote: AYES, DeDiemar, Gage, Gregorek, Reyes, Ricci, and Willoughby; NOES, n...
	It was moved by Reyes, seconded by DeDiemar, to recommend adoption of a resolution to approve the Planned Unit Development, File No., PUD19-001, subject to conditions of approval. Roll call vote: AYES, DeDiemar, Gage, Gregorek, Reyes, Ricci, and Willo...
	It was moved by Ricci, seconded by Gage, to adopt a resolution to approve the Development Plan, File No., PDEV19-038, subject to conditions of approval. Roll call vote: AYES, DeDiemar, Gage, Gregorek, Reyes, Ricci, and Willoughby; NOES, none; RECUSE, ...
	PUBLIC TESTIMONY
	Mr. Andy Wong, the representative for the project appeared and spoke.
	Mr. Willoughby asked if Mr. Wong agreed with the conditions of approval.
	Mr. Wong stated yes.
	Mr. Reyes wanted to know what the plan moving forward is, once the project is approved.
	Mr. Wong stated he thought it was planned to sell the lots.
	Mr. Willoughby wanted clarity that they would divide the lots then sell off to develop.
	Mr. Wong stated if the client wishes to move forward, they would sell the lots after they are developed.
	As there was no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Willoughby closed the public testimony
	It was moved by Gage, seconded by Gregorek, to adopt a resolution to approve the Tentative Parcel Map, File No., PMTT19-007, subject to conditions of approval. Roll call vote: AYES, DeDiemar, Gage, Gregorek, Reyes, Ricci, and Willoughby; NOES, none; R...
	PUBLIC TESTIMONY
	Mr. Darrel Malamut appeared and thanked staff.
	Mr. Reyes wanted to know if there were any ideas for what the retail would be.
	Mr. Malamut stated they would be an active use for the residents and the surrounding community, something like a brewery and eating establishment.
	Mr. Reyes wanted to know what kind of signage or monumentation is being proposed for Inland Empire and Vineyard, to bring this together.
	Mr. Malamut stated there is a monument sign proposed at grade level on the corner of Inland Empire and Vineyard and there is an architectural tower element that will have signage and the clubhouse that will have signage as well and at the entry at the...
	Mr. Willoughby wanted clarity regarding retail area having a patio deck on top.
	Mr. Malamut stated this is proposed as an active use within the residential community, which they have envisioned as a co-working, creative office space.
	Mr. Willoughby wanted to know if it will be for residents only.
	Mr. Malamut stated yes, because it has to do with the internal circulation details like stairs, etc.
	Mr. Willoughby wanted clarification on the parking numbers.
	Mr. Serafin Moran stated there are 35 spaces total with shared parking opportunity with the leasing office and there are drop off opportunities for Lyft and Uber services. He also stated that should they need additional spaces there will be an agreed ...
	Mr. Reyes wanted clarification on what kind of site amenities will be provided.
	Mr. Malamut stated the amenities would include 3 pools, cabanas and pool house, Jacuzzi, club house with banquet facility and a lookout bridge, roof deck with barbecue, and seating elements, two fitness centers, sand volleyball court, business center,...
	Mr. Willoughby wanted to know if the guard house would be manned.
	Mr. Malamut stated yes 24 hours.
	Mr. Gage wanted to clarify if the shared parking was with the residents.
	Mr. Malamut stated they believe the 35 stales will be adequate, but if needed they would use a valet service and use the overflow parking within the community.
	Mr. Willoughby wanted to know if Palmer would be managing the apartments as well.
	Mr. Malamut stated yes, they have a property management component as well as the developer and builder.
	Mr. Willoughby wanted to know if they had a timeline to start the project.
	Mr. Malamut stated they would like to get the grading plans submitted as soon as possible, and they are ready to move forward.
	Mr. Willoughby wanted to know if they had an idea of rent range.
	Mr. Malamut stated the market sets rent but was looking from a range of $1400 to $2800, for studio to 3 bedrooms, as this is a high-quality project.
	Mr. Gage wanted to know if they would charge more for rent based on the mountain view.
	Mr. Malamut stated yes, they price based on all sorts of characteristics.
	As there was no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Willoughby closed the public testimony
	It was moved by Gregorek, seconded by Ricci, to recommend adoption of a resolution to approve the use of an Addendum. Roll call vote: AYES, DeDiemar, Gage, Gregorek, Reyes, Ricci and Willoughby; NOES, none; RECUSE, none; ABSENT, Downs. The motion was ...
	It was moved by Reyes, seconded by DeDiemar, to recommend adoption of a resolution to approve the Specific Plan Amendment, File No., PSPA19-002, subject to conditions of approval. Roll call vote: AYES, DeDiemar, Gage, Gregorek, Reyes, Ricci, and Willo...
	MATTERS FROM THE PLANNING COMMISSION
	Old Business Reports From Subcommittees
	Historic Preservation (Standing): This subcommittee met on Nov. 14, 2019
	 Discussed the renovation to the Bank of Italy and Bumstead Bicycles
	Development Code Review (Ad-hoc): This subcommittee did not meet.
	Zoning General Plan Consistency (Ad-hoc): This subcommittee did not meet.
	New Business
	Mr. Ricci stated that on November 7th, he, Ms. DeDiemar, and Mr. Downs attended a Planning Commission Workshop through the Inland Empire Section of APA, where the Legacy Award was presented to Mrs. Delman, for Mr. Delman and all his community work. Mr...
	Mr. Reyes wanted to know if there were any new development plans in the works at the Mountain and 60 freeway and El Pescador.
	Mr. Zeledon stated El Pescador has purchased the building and is currently cleaning it and they want to use it in the future for community storage but need a Development Code Amendment to do this. He stated there use to be CCRs on the lot with several...
	Mr. Reyes wanted to know if the facade improvements at Mountain and Philadelphia are completed.
	Mr. Zeledon stated he would check on it.
	Mr. Willoughby wanted to know what is going in on Holt, near Grove, across from the affordable housing project.
	Mr. Zeledon stated they are moving forward with a two industrial warehouse building project that was approved about two years ago.
	Ms. DeDiemar wanted to know if anything was able to be salvaged from the GE Clubhouse.
	Mr. Zeledon stated no it was all hazardous.
	Mr. Gage asked regarding the parking component for downtown being updated and are we thinking ahead to what would be needed for parking, to fit our future successful downtown area.
	Ms. Wahlstrom stated there is a parking component already in place and that other parking circulation opportunities are being looked at and discussed.
	Mr. Zeledon stated they are looking at a “Park Once” concept, and at a new parking model and opportunities coming into the C block.
	NOMINATIONS FOR SPECIAL RECOGNITION
	None at this time.
	DIRECTOR’S REPORT
	Ms. Wahlstrom stated the Monthly Activity Report is in their packet.
	ADJOURNMENT
	Reyes motioned to adjourn to December 16, 2019. The meeting was adjourned at 8:32 PM.
	________________________________
	Secretary Pro Tempore
	________________________________

	20191216 Item A-02 PDEV19-021
	20191216 File No. PDEV19-021^01 AR
	20191216 File No. PDEV19-021^02 RESO
	20191216 File No. PDEV19-021^03 COA

	20191216 Item A-03 PDEV19-033
	20191216 File No. PDEV19-033^01_AR
	20191216 File No. PDEV19-033^02_RESO
	20191216 File No. PDEV19-033^03_COA

	20191216 Item B PMTT16-004 (TTM 19966)
	20191216 File No PMTT16-004_Rescind Map ^01 AR
	20191216 File No PMTT16-004_Rescind Map ^02 Reso
	SECTION 1: Recitals. The above recitals are true and correct and such recitals are incorporated herein as if rewritten.
	SECTION 2: Environmental Review Not Required. Based on the information presented to the Planning Commission, and the specific findings set forth in Section 1, above, the Planning Commission finds that the adoption of this Resolution, rescinding the Ci...
	SECTION 3: Rescission of Approval of File No. PMTT16-004 (TT 19966). Pursuant to the terms of the Development Agreement, the Planning Commission hereby rescinds its approval of File No. PMTT 16-004, including Tentative Tract Nos. 19966-1, 19966-2 1996...


	20191216 Item C PDA15-003
	20191216 File No. PDA15-003 BrookCal Ontario LLC^01 AR
	20191216 File No. PDA15-003 BrookCal Ontario LLC^02 RESO
	20191216 File No. PDA15-003 BrookCal Ontario LLC^03 AGMT

	20191216 PC Monthly Activity Report
	11-2019 Monthly Activity Report - Actions
	11-2019 Monthly Activity Report - New Apps
	PCUP19-027: Submitted by Juahandra Sogota
	PCUP19-028: Submitted by Gurvinder Singh
	PDCA19-003: Submitted by City of Ontario Planning Department
	PDEV19-062: Submitted by Newcastle Partners Inc
	PDEV19-063: Submitted by United Trust Realty Corporation
	PDEV19-064: Submitted by The New Home Company Southern California, LLC
	PDEV19-065: Submitted by Jauhandra Sogata
	PDEV19-066: Submitted by Friends of Family Health Care
	PDEV19-067: Submitted by Gurvinder Singh
	PDEV19-068: Submitted by AT&T (Crown Castle- Agent for AT&T)
	PDIF19-008: Submitted by SC Ontario Development Company, LLC
	PGPA19-008: Submitted by Ontario Schafer Holdings, LLC
	PGPA19-009: Submitted by Blaise D'Angelo
	PHP-19-017: Submitted by Salvador Cardenas
	PHP-19-018: Submitted by Ofelia Pankratz
	PMTT19-021: Submitted by United Trust Realty Corporation
	PSGN19-118: Submitted by Signs of Success
	PSGN19-119: Submitted by Toyota Arena
	PSGN19-120: Submitted by 88 Sign
	PSGN19-121: Submitted by Martinez Electric
	PSGN19-122: Submitted by Machan Sign Co
	PSGN19-123: Submitted by William Sign Co
	PSGN19-124: Submitted by Alcon Signs
	PSGP19-005: Submitted by Prime A Investments - Ontario, LLC
	PSPA19-011: Submitted by Ontario Schafer Holdings, LLC
	PTUP19-073: Submitted by Smart and Final
	PTUP19-074: Submitted by American Legion Post 112
	PTUP19-075: Submitted by Hooters of Ontario
	PTUP19-076: Submitted by The Office Bar
	PTUP19-077: Submitted by Bob's Discount Furniture
	PTUP19-078: Submitted by Prayer + Praise Ministries
	PTUP19-079: Submitted by Muslim American Society
	PTUP19-080: Submitted by M-K Associates
	PTUP19-081: Submitted by Christopher Allen
	PTUP19-082: Submitted by Lowes
	PTUP19-083: Submitted by Knights of Columbus Council #13619
	PVER19-066: Submitted by Zoning Info Inc
	PVER19-067: Submitted by PZR
	PVER19-068: Submitted by PZR
	PVER19-069: Submitted by PZR
	PVER19-070: Submitted by Stutzman, Bromberg, Esserman and Plifka, PC
	PVER19-071: Submitted by PZR
	PVER19-072: Submitted by PZR
	PVER19-073: Submitted by PZR
	PVER19-074: Submitted by PZR
	PZC-19-003: Submitted by Blaise D'Angelo





